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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report of Pan
Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2014. Throughout the financial
year of 2014, the Group maintained its position as an integrated
environmental protection (“EP”) services and eco-friendly
construction materials provider by leveraging its well-established
industry experience, which led to remarkable business growth.

As most cities in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
have been afflicted by severe smog problems in recent years,
the Central Government (the “Central Government”) of the
PRC has strived to formulate and subsequently implement
various policies to reduce major pollutants in the environment.
Further to the “Airborne Pollution Prevention and Control
Action Plan” published on 12 September 2013, the Ministry of
Environmental Protection mandated a 2% drop in emission of
sulphur dioxide and a 5% drop for nitrogen oxide in 2014. A
total of 1,473 projects were planned to be launched by 2014,
targeting denitrification enhancement covering a 130 million
kilowatt output of thermal power plants and the installation of
denitrification facilities for steel sintering machines covering
15,000m2.

In addition, an Environmental Protection Law with stronger
provisions has come into effect aiming at reducing water
pollution. The Ministry of Environmental Protection has proposed
a total of 54 projects to support the implementation of the new
law. Five regulations covering the release of information and
daily fines for pollution came into effect in 2014. Under the
revised law, polluters would be charged daily fines for violations,
with no upper limits on penalties set. Restrictions over
emissions of pollutants in key industries such as paper making
and printing and dyeing industries are to be strengthened as
well. Under the “Water Pollution Prevention and Control Action
Plan” (K5 8778)312l), the PRC plans to spend RMB2
trillion to more actively tackle pollution of its scarce water
resources through investing in the sewage treatment, recycling
and membrane technology. The Central Government for its part
is enhancing water pollution preventive measures by finalising a
stricter water management system. Through the formulation and
subsequent implementation of the plan, the Central Government
has stepped up pollution prevention efforts in major rivers
and for underground aquifers, with a target of reducing water
pollution emissions of key industries by more than 30% by
2015.
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In the “Development Plan of Green Building and Green
Ecological Districts” (4% & 2 58 M 4% & 4 RE W [@ B & 48 &) of
the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”, green construction standards
have been applied to Affordable Housing projects in provincial
capitals as well as large-scale projects such as airports,
train stations, hotels, malls and offices buildings since 2014.
Moreover, property developers have been encouraged to
establish green residential districts and the Central Government
aims to have more than 50% of the new property projects in
municipalities and cities in the Eastern coastal areas being in
compliance with green construction standards by 2015.

The high priority and more active promotion of EP by the
Central Government have created favorable opportunities for
the industry as a whole and the Group in particular. In order
to capture the opportunities presented by the surging market
demand for green construction materials as mandated by
government policies, the Group is boosting its development
of the eco-friendly construction materials business by further
strengthening the promotion of its Wood Wool Cement Board
(“WWGCB?”).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group achieved
a total turnover of RMB587.1 million, similar to that of 2013
(2013: RMB588.0 million). Gross profit rose to about RMB151.4
million (2013: RMB64.9 million) and gross profit margin was
25.8% (2013: 11.0%). This growth was mainly attributable
to the substantial rise in revenue from the WWCB business
and an improvement in the gross profit margin of sales of EP
products and equipment which combined to deliver a business
turnaround. The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners
of the Company of RMB28.4 million, a turnaround from the net
loss in 2013 (2013: loss of RMB21.1 million). The basic earnings
per share were RMB3.47 cents (2013: basic loss per share of
RMB2.64 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended payment of a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: Nil). Subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company to
be held on Friday, 5 June 2015, the final dividend is to be paid
on or before Friday, 26 June 2015 to registered shareholders of
the Company as at Tuesday, 16 June 2015.
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PROSPECTS

Eco-friendly construction materials business - increasing
popularity with immense potential

In battling the widely-publicized pollution crisis, the Central
Government of the PRC is actively promoting reduction of
carbon dioxide by designating the construction of green
buildings as a key strategy to save energy and reduce carbon
dioxide emission. By 2020, more than 30% of new buildings
in cities are to adopt green building standards. In addition, the
State Council’s “Green Building Action Plan” clearly defines the
country’s determination to enhance the development of green
construction materials and assist the development of such
material industry. Driven by the Central Government’s policies
and its increased efforts to promote the construction of green
buildings, the market demand for eco-friendly construction
materials continues to increase, and the increasing market
recognition of the benefits of WWCB underscores its strong
development potential.

In view of the huge opportunities in the industry, the Group
has been aggressively expanding its eco-friendly construction
materials business. The Group owns the exclusive right to
import WWCB production facilities from the Netherlands and
operate them in the PRC and its engineering experts and sales
and marketing team have been actively promoting the products.
With the national standards for WWCB construction and
inspection, architectural design institutes can design projects
based on these standards. As a result, the market recognition
of WWCB is set to expand and the application of WWCB
will become more widespread across a range of projects.
Meanwhile, the preliminary construction of the Yihe residence
project in Inner Mongolia and a resort hotel project in Yichang,
Hubei have been completed. It is expected that the construction
of the first high-rise building will be completed in 2015.

The Group has commenced construction of two highway
sound barrier projects. The Foshan Highway project is
expected to be completed in the first half of 2015. The Group’s
participation in the Jiamin Highway project is also in progress
with the preliminary phase completed. Besides participating in
infrastructure works, the Group’s participation in projects for the
Yixing Cultural Center and China Communications Construction
Company Real Estate Company Limited has been confirmed,
and is expected to contribute income in 2015.
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With three production lines already in commercial operation, the
Group will conduct final test runs for two more production lines
in April 2015 and for another one in mid-2015. With all these
new production lines scheduled to be fully operational by June
2015, the Group’s productivity in the second half of 2015 will be
improved and its workflow will be optimized.

To make the most out of the business opportunities, the Group
is leveraging its abundant industry experience to expand
production capacity, as it enhances regional cooperation with
strategic partners. At the same time, apart from cooperating
with construction companies and contractors, the Group is
directly selling WWCB within specific application areas and
geographical regions, while improving its product specifications
and quality in an effort to optimize its sales network.

Water and flue gas treatment business - continues to bring
revenue with stable performance

In recent years, EP has been an increasingly important issue
in the PRC. Regarding environmental pollution, especially the
severe smog problem and mounting water pollution, the Central
Government has launched a series of policies and specific
measures to address these issues.

The strongly supportive national policies have significantly
spurred domestic demand for the EP products. Around 4,500
waste water treatment plants in the PRC are required to be
upgraded to Grade 1A emission standards, thus creating a
strong market demand. The Group’s water treatment business
for its part owns several patents. Its special chemical ingredients
can dissolve the organisms in sludge and reduce sludge volume
by 50%, thus saving around 70% of waste water treatment cost
and improving the cost efficiency of water treatment. As the
Group’s proprietary technology is fundamentally different from
traditional sludge treatment methods, it can reduce secondary
pollution as well. As a result, the Group’s participation in several
coal chemical water treatment projects in Inner Mongolia are
expected to be confirmed soon, which promise to contribute
substantial income.
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On top of desulphurization and denitrification works, the
Group will undertake demercuration projects. By leveraging
its strong desulphurization experience, the Group will start to
provide demercuration services to clients engaged in a variety
of industries including non-ferrous metals, power generation,
iron and steel, cement and glass production, aiming to help
these clients reduce pollution from heavy metal emissions.
Upon completion of the testing of its demercuration processes,
the Group will provide one-stop EP solutions incorporating
desulphurization, denitrification and demercuration. Currently,
the Group has 53 uncompleted water and flue gas treatment
contracts with a total value of approximately RMB639.7 million
on hand.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM

The AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 5 June 2015.
For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 3 June 2015 to Friday, 5 June
2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfer of shares, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and appropriate transfer
forms, must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited of
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
2 June 2015.

(b) For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 12 June 2015 to Tuesday, 16
June 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to receive the proposed final dividend, all transfer of
shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and appropriate transfer forms, must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 11 June 2015.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to
express my heartfelt gratitude to all our staff for their tireless
dedication to the Group during the year. | would also wish to
extend my appreciation to all the shareholders as they have
supported the Group to steadily grow its business and expand
into the new eco-friendly construction materials business.
My thanks further go to our shareholders, investors, clients,
suppliers and business partners for their constant support. Their
unswerving support and loyalty has provided the Group with
strong momentum to generate better returns in the future.

Jiang Quanlong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

As an eco-friendly construction materials and integrated EP
services provider, the Group is principally engaged in the
development, manufacturing and sales of new eco-friendly
construction materials, and the provision of EP construction
engineering solutions and services for customers.

SALES OF EP PRODUCTS AND EQUIPMENT

During the year under review, sales of EP products and
equipment recorded a turnover of approximately RMB478.6
million, accounting for roughly 81.5% of the Group’s total
turnover.

Sales of Water Treatment Products and Equipment

Water treatment systems are mainly used for the treatment of
industrial and urban waste water. After the Central Government
tightened the requirements for water treatment of coal chemical
companies which consume enormous quantities of water
resources, the Group has also entered this potentially lucrative
new sector. During the year under review, the Group completed
67 water treatment-related sales contracts, while the water
treatment business generated a turnover of approximately
RMB463.1 million, accounting for approximately 78.9% of the
Group’s total turnover.

Sales of Flue Gas Treatment Products and Equipment

The Group’s comprehensive supply chain in flue gas treatment
products and equipment provides services ranging from
engineering design to maintenance services. The Group has
been cooperating with a wide range of customers, including
both government-owned corporations and private enterprises,
which include Shanxi Yangquan Coal Industry Group Co. Ltd.
(LL7aFs REZE(EB)BREMEAR]) and United Laboratories (B
FH%5), etc. In addition to desulphurization and denitrification
services, the Group has also recently undertaken dedusting
project of coal-fired power plants, expanding its scope of
business and revenue in this sector. During the year ended 31
December 2014, the Group completed three projects related
to the sale of equipment for flue gas treatment, generating a
turnover of RMB15.5 million, which represented 2.6% of the
Group’s total turnover.
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EP CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING PROJECTS

Leveraging its extensive industry expertise, professional
research and development (“R&D”) capabilities and
technologies, the Group provides one-stop EP solutions to a
diverse range of clients. Most of the projects in this segment
spanned different financial periods and are booked to the
accounts according to the stage of completion. Meanwhile,
the Group has been involved in several non-governmental
projects. Since final acceptance of these projects has yet
to be confirmed, revenue generated from these projects
will be reflected in 2015. During the year under review, this
segment recorded a turnover of approximately RMB1.6 million,
accounting for about 0.3% of the Group’s total turnover.

PROVISION OF EP-RELATED PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES

The Group’s subsidiary, the Shanghai Environmental Engineering
Design & Research Institute Limited (“SEEDRI”) holds Grade
A qualification in EP engineering design, which enables it to
provide EP project design services for cross-sector clients
around the PRC. During the year under review, this segment
recorded a turnover of approximately RMB4.3 million,
accounting for about 0.7% of the Group’s total turnover.

MANUFACTURE OF EP CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS

As a new EP construction material for renovation and wall
components, WWCB offers particularly exciting potential as
it can be widely used in residential and commercial buildings,
noise barriers along highways and railways, music halls, stations
and car parks, and can effectively reduce engineering cost
when compared to traditional construction materials. During
the year under review, this segment recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB102.7 million, accounting for about 17.5% of
the Group’s total turnover with a profit margin of up to 47.1%.

As an eco-friendly inorganic energy-conserving construction
material, WWCB is made from cement, eco-friendly fast growing
timber and non-toxic additives through high pressurisation.
Widely used overseas, WWCB enjoys distinctive features of
heat preservation, fire resistant, sound-proof, moisture-proof,
mould-proof and insect repelling properties, and its other
outstanding features include sound absorption, hardness
and durability, light weight and attractive appearance. As an
ecologically-compatible material, it is bio-degradable and highly
beneficial for environmental protection.
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In view of the huge potential of WWCB, the Group has engaged
in cooperation with the industry leader from the Netherlands,
and has introduced WWCB and large wall components in the
PRC on an exclusive basis. Among the six production lines
imported from the Netherlands, each with an annual capacity of
approximately 140,000m?, five are standard lines that produce
WWCB of varying thickness from 10mm to 100mm. The other
is the most advanced and is a fully automated large wall
component production line which can manufacture large wall
components with a maximum dimensions of 3m x 6m x 40cm
which can be directly installed. Based on its expertise in large
wall components, the Group has developed integrated wall
component products boasting features of wall components,
decoration and heat preservation, thus saving production cost
for construction companies and contractors. As at the end of
31 December 2014, three production lines have commenced
commercial operation.

As the largest and most advanced WWCB producer in the
world, the Group leverages its own R&D capability to upgrade
the products to meet local needs in the PRC. During the
year under review, the Group has compiled and submitted
the national industry standards “Technological Specifications
for Application of WWCB” to the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of the PRC (P A R IELME(EE
W 832 #B) for approval. The national standards for WWCB
construction and inspection are expected to roll out in May
2015. When put into effect as a national standard, it will further
strengthen the Group’s leading position in the segment, speed
up the market penetration of WWCB and facilitate the revolution
of construction materials.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has
secured its first order for its large wall components in a
collaborative project covering a gross floor area of approximately
500,000m? with Longyuan Construction Group Co. Ltd. Marking
a major step in the market development of WWCB, the Group
is to provide prefabricated external wall to a residential district
in Inner Mongolia. The first phase of the project has already
commenced construction in mid-2014. As a cross-year project,
it has contributed promising income during the year ended 31
December 2014 and will continue to generate income in 2015.

In terms of market development, the Group has stepped up
promotion of WWCB as building panels and blocks in replace
of traditional wall building materials, and is actively striving to
develop the North America and Asia markets. The Group has
recorded regular monthly sales to South Korea and received
orders from Bhutan and other Southeast Asian countries.
Besides, the Group has set up a dedicated team in Hong Kong
for the sales and promotion of WWCB to Hong Kong and
overseas markets.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the total assets of the Group
amounted to RMB1,802.0 million, an increase of RMB276.0
million as compared to RMB1,525.9 million in 2013. The
increase was mainly due to increases in property, plant and
equipment and inventories. The Group’s total liabilities as at
31 December 2014 amounted to RMB562.0 million, increased
by RMB202.0 million as compared to RMB360.0 million in
2013. The main reason for the increase in total liabilities was
the increase in deposits received in advance. The Group’s
total equity as at 31 December 2014 was RMB1,240.0 million
(2013: RMB1,165.9 million). The Group had an unpaid bank
borrowings of RMB14.0 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB14.0 million) and the equity ratio calculated by dividing
interest-bearing loans and other borrowings by total equity as at
31 December 2014 was 1.1% (2013: 1.2%). The Group’s cash
and cash equivalents amounted to RMB379.2 million as at 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB571.3 million).

On 8 July 2014, Praise Fortune Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent for placing a maximum of 60,000,000
ordinary shares (the “Placing Shares”) of the Company at a
placing price of HK$1.63 per share. On the same date, the
Company entered into a subscription agreement with Praise
Fortune Limited for issue of a maximum of 60,000,000 new
ordinary shares at HK$1.63 per share.

On 22 July 2014, 40,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
were placed by Praise Fortune Limited to certain independent
third parties at a subscription price of HK$1.63 per share. On
the same date, the Company issued 40,000,000 new ordinary
shares to Praise Fortune Limited at an issue price of HK$1.63
per share. The Company raised approximately RMB50,816,000
(net of directly attributable expenses of approximately
RMB1,361,000), which will be used for future development of
WWCB business and as general working capital of the Group.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN FOREIGN
EXCHANGE RATES

Business transactions and liabilities of the Group are largely
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollars. The Group
adopts a conservative financial policy and the majority of its
bank deposits are in Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31
December 2014, the Group did not have any foreign currency
bank liabilities, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency
swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purposes.
Nevertheless, the management is continuing to monitor the
foreign exchange exposure and will take prudent measures as
and when appropriate. As at 31 December 2014, the Group did
not hold any derivatives for hedging against both the interest
rate and foreign exchange risks.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a capital expenditure
commitment in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment totalling RMB2.3 million (2013: RMB33.0 million).
The Group provides product maintenance services to customers
of flue gas desulphurization (“FGD”) construction projects and
certain EP products for a period ranging from six months to two
years after a project is completed or a product is delivered. At
the same time, the Group enjoys warranties for the work and
equipment from its sub-contractors and suppliers. The Directors
of the Company believe that the amount of crystallised warranty
liabilities, if any, in excess of the amount covered by the
warranties given by sub-contractors and suppliers, would not
have any adverse material effect on the overall financial position
or operating results of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has approximately
270 employees. Salaries of employees were maintained
at competitive levels and are reviewed annually, with close
reference to the relevant labor market and the economic
situation. Remuneration of the Directors is determined based on
a variety of factors such as market conditions and the specific
responsibilities shouldered by the individual director. Apart from
the basic remuneration and statutory benefits required by law,
the Group also provides training programmes and discretionary
bonuses based on its results and the performance of the
individual employee. The Group also has an employee share
option scheme in operation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Board was committed to achieving good corporate
governance standards.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Group to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability and to formulate its business
strategies and policies, and to enhance its transparency and
accountability.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2014, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code, save and except for code
provision E.1.2 which states that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the AGM of the Company. The related details are
set out under “Communication with Shareholders and Investors”
below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Company’s
Securities Dealing Code”) on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Company’s Securities Dealing Code and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company’s Securities Dealing Code on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities transactions also
applies to all employees who are likely to be in possession
of inside information of the Company. No incident of
non-compliance of the Company’s Securities Dealing Code by
the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six members including three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Quanlong, Chairman and member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Jiang Lei, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Fan Yajun

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lai Wing Lee, chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee and member of
the Audit Committee

Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny, chairman of the Audit Committee
and member of the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee

Professor Wang Guozhen, member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages
25 to 28 of the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2014. The relationships between the members of the Board are
disclosed therein.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Jiang Quanlong and Mr. Jiang Lei respectively. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive
Officer focuses on the Company’s business development and
daily management and operations generally. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board with one
of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

Independent Non-executive Directors and Directors’
Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that
non-executive Directors shall be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that
all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment and that every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company is appointed under a letter of appointment which
is terminable by either party with 3 months’ notice in writing
served on the other side. All directors of the Company are
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years and
any new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit
himself for re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association ("Articles of Association").

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

All directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company as well as the services and advice from the
company secretary and senior management. The directors
may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.
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The directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

The existing Directors are continually updated with the legal and
regulatory developments, the market changes and the business
activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction shall
be supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant sites and
meetings with senior management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated
briefings for directors will be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to directors where appropriate. All
directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Directors namely,
Mr. Jiang Quanlong, Mr. Jiang Lei, Mr. Fan Yajun and Professor
Wang Guozhen, had attended a seminar which was organized
by the qualified professionals in relation to the board diversity
policy, the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
the updates of the Listing Rules amendments relating to
connected transactions and the updated development of the
Environment, Social and Governance Reporting Guide. Related
reference materials have also been provided to Mr. Lai Wing
Lee for his study. Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny had read various
articles including Financial Professional’s Role, Acquisition
Without Tears, Ready to Split, International Management,
Managing Alliance, Pattern of Leadership, and Off Their Trolley
relating to management and leadership which are relevant to the
directors’ duties and responsibilities. Professor Wang Guozhen
had also read various chapters relating to securities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors and the list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under “Board of Directors” on page 16 of this Corporate
Governance Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
internal control procedures and risk management system, audit
plan and relationship with external auditor, and arrangements
to enable employees of the Company to raise, in confidence,
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2014 and significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and
risk management systems, scope of work and appointment
of external auditor and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice without
the presence of the Executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include determining the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management, reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure for all directors and senior management,
and establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration
packages of the individual Executive Directors and senior
management, reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of the Independent Non-executive
Directors and on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of all directors and senior management during the
year.

The Remuneration Committee did not hold any meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of directors, and
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary,
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character and integrity, qualifications, experience, independence
and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, considered and made
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of directors
and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
during the year. The Nomination Committee considered that an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained.

The Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Company’s
Securities Dealing Code and the Model Code and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the
table below:
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HERY/ SERE
Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Name of Director EEMS Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Ex® ReZA® FHMZAE EKZAY BREAEXE
Jiang Quanlong BRE 12/12 0/0 00  NATER 0/1
Jiang Lei B% 12/12 N/ATER N/ATER  N/ATER 1/1
Fan Yajun BhE 1212 N/ATES NAT#EA  NATEA 0/1
Lai Wing Lee REKH 10/12 0/0 0/0 2/2 on
Leung Shu Sun, Sunny R 10/12 0/0 0/0 2/2 11
Wang Guozhen TEY 10/12 0/0 0/0 2/2 11
Gan Yi (resigned on 7 May 2014)  HE (R=ZT—MF 2/4  N/ATER N/ATNE A N/AZTiE A N/ANE

RALBEE)

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors without
the presence of Executive Directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.
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The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 43 to
44,

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to HK$1,370,000
and HK$580,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company,
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appoints Mr. Wan San Fai, Vincent as its Company
Secretary in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association and in compliance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules. Mr. Wan has complied with the professional
training requirement as set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual directors.
All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings may be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Directors or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
Extraordinary General Meeting to be called by the Directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Directors do not
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

For proposal of a person for election as director, pursuant
to Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless
notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Company’s Head Office at Suite 6302, The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong or at the Company’s Registration
Office at Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong at least seven
(7) clear days before the date of the general meeting and the
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and shall be at least seven
(7) clear days in length.

Shareholders who wish to put forward other proposals at
general meetings may follow the procedures in “Convening an
Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders” set out above
to convene an extraordinary general meeting for business
specified in the written requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Suite 6302, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

Fax: 3747-8047

Email: info@paep.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address
apart from other specified address, if any, of the Company
and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an
on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
AGMs and other general meetings. At the AGM, directors
(or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

Mr. Jiang Quanlong, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to
attend the AGM held on 6 June 2014 due to a business trip. He
will use his best endeavours to attend all future shareholders’
meetings of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Quanlong, aged 62, is the Chairman of the Board
and an Executive Director of the Company. He was appointed
as Director of the Company in August 2006. He is also a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He has over 15 years of experience in China’s EP
industry. He is responsible for formulating strategies guiding the
Group’s overall development and strengthening the competitive
position of the Group in the PRC’s EP market. In addition, he
is the chairman and executive director of China Rare Earth
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Jiang is the father of Mr.
Jiang Lei, an Executive Director, and father of Mr. Jiang Xin,
both being controlling shareholders of Praise Fortune Limited,
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also the sole
director of Praise Fortune Limited.

Mr. Jiang Lei, aged 32, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group and an Executive Director of the Company. He was
appointed as Director of the Company in March 2007. He joined
the Group in March 2007 and is responsible for the business
development of the Group. He holds a bachelor’'s degree
in Finance from Cass Business School, London, the United
Kingdom. Mr. Jiang is the son of Mr. Jiang Quanlong, Chairman
and Executive Director and the sole director of Praise Fortune
Limited, controlling shareholder of the Company, and brother of
Mr.Jiang Xin, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Fan Yajun, aged 47, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He was appointed as Director of the Company
in March 2007. He has more than 20 years of experience
in business management. He joined the Group in July 2002
and has been responsible for the overall administration and
business management. He completed a Master of Business
Administration course at Southeast University in July 2004. For
the period between August 1999 and August 2005, he was
an executive director of China Rare Earth Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Wing Lee, aged 75, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
December 2007. He is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and also a
member of the Audit Committee. He has been the managing
director of Shenzhen Beishen Environmental Packaging
Development Co., Limited, which is mainly engaged in the sales
and manufacture of EP packaging products, since August 2005.
He graduated from the South China Institute of Technology (now
known as South China University of Technology) in 1965. He
has over 30 years of experience in enterprise management.

Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny, aged 52, has been appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since December 2007. He is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. He has over 20 years’
working experience in, among others, accounting, treasury
management, budgeting and corporate finance. He graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a professional
diploma in Accountancy and obtained a master’'s degree in
business administration from the University of South Australia.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of Certified
General Accountants’ Association of Canada. From 2005 to
2007, he served as the financial controller, qualified accountant
and company secretary of Xiwang Sugar Holdings Company
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. From 2001 to date, he has been a director
of a company providing accounting, tax and corporate finance
services. From 1999 to 2001, he held key financial position in
a listed company in Hong Kong. From 1998 to 1999, he was
a finance director of a company principally engaged in the
provision of network infrastructure solutions. From 1993 to
1998, he was the financial controller of a company principally
engaged in property investment, trading and securities. From
1987 to 1990, he worked in international accounting firms
handling audit, tax and accounting matters. Mr. Leung has been
an independent non-executive director of Xiwang Special Steel
Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange since February 2012.

26

BYFBITES

BAFIEE 755 B-ZETLEF+ A
HEERERANRRZBILIFNATES - K
RIREZEERFNEEG 2R IH
BRETRZEECZB - HE-TFTLF
NARBBEFRINTILRRRBEEREGR
NAIZESFREIE AR EBUFRR
BEREMIHENEE - BN —NAREF
FENFEHET SR CARAERETK
B) - WNEEER T HEFBI0FLR -

REHEE S25 B ZTTLEF =
AREZEABARRRIZBYIERITES -
BABIZEGZER  VTAREZES
MFWEEG2EE - FEG - MAE
B BERGERMESA BEHMY
M A E0F THELR - BUAEHE
EVRBENFESEIAZ  THAENE
RN ASES IS EE T2 - &
ABERSHFARGHMAGELRTE &
Bertiiage 8 RmeKafe:timn
28 FR_TETAFE_ZTT+FH
MEAATIEEZRERAR (EBRMHH
BERFTER ET) 25 HE AR
SR ARWE - HE—TE—FES5
R—REERSH  HERCERERSEZ
AEETES - HE—NWNANFEZZZT
—FHE R—REB LM REELEE
FBEAL - 8 —NANANFE—ALANAF
HE R—REBREREPRERRER
FREBZAEAUBES - HE—N
N=ZF2—ANANFHHE  A—RESHR
EYMERE  BHREBHFZRRZHER
B FE—NAN\EFEE—NNTFHH
DREReHMAITIE BEREES
MEREFER - RAAER T ——F=
ARAERIEMAERAA (ERGBIREER
FIEREM) 2B IEHITES -



Annual Report 2014 ¢ — & —[QFF R

Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEE

Professor Wang Guozhen, aged 79, has been appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
December 2007. He is a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. From
October 1980 to 2004, Professor Wang was the chairperson
of the Environment Protection Specialist Commission of the
Chinese Society of Rare Earths and he became a consultant
after 2004. He was from 1994 to 2005, a member of the Rare
Earth Expert Group of China State Planning and Development
Commission, and the team leader of the Industry Division.
Professor Wang was appointed as an Expert of the Expert
Group of the Association of China Rare Earth Industry on 8
April 2014. He graduated from the Department of Chemical
Engineering of Tianjin University with a major in physical
chemistry of metals. He was an independent director of the
State-owned Gansu Rare Earth Group Co., Ltd. from 2005
to December 2012. On 1 August 2012, Professor Wang was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of China
Rare Earth Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. On 1 December 2012,
he was appointed as an independent director of Lianyungang
Ligang Rare Earth Industrial Co., Ltd. On 26 January 2013,
Professor Wang was appointed as an independent director of
Shenghe Resources Holding Co. Ltd, the shares of which are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wan San Fai, Vincent, aged 41, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Company. He joined the
Group in March 2007 and is responsible for the corporate
finance function of the Group. He oversees matters relating
to financial administration, and compliance and reporting
obligations of the Group. Mr. Wan has more than 15 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wan has worked for a company
listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange as its financial
controller from 2005 to 2007. Mr. Wan is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wan holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

Mr. Fu Kun, aged 48, has over 20 years of experience in
project management of engineering design. He served as a vice
general manager of SEEDRI since April 2006. Before joining
the Group, he was the vice general manager of Shanghai
Gongcheng. He is responsible for project management of
environmental protection engineering design. He holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from Asia International Open
University, Macau.
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Mr. Huang Wei, aged 31, is the vice general manager of
Wuxi Pan Asia Environmental Protection Technologies Limited
("Wuxi Pan-Asia"). He has about 10 years of experience in EP
technology. He joined the Group in 2010 and is responsible
for the WWCB division. Before joining the Group, he was
a technical manager of Jiangsu Yuansheng Environmental
Protection Equipment Co, Limited. He graduated from Xuzhou
Normal University, majoring in computer numerical control
machining technology.

Mr. Ji Hongwei, aged 44, is the vice general manager of Wuxi
Pan-Asia. He has more than 10 years of experience in sales
and project management. He joined the Group in 2003 and is
responsible for sales and marketing of WWCB. Before joining
the Group, he was a sales manager of Yixing Xingda Catalyst
Factory. He graduated from Dapu Middle School in Yixing City.

Mr. Wu Dongping, aged 32, is the financial controller of Wuxi
Pan-Asia. He has about 10 years of experience in financial
management. He joined the Group in May 2014. Before joining
the Group, he was a finance manager of Yixing AGC Ceramics
Company Limited. He graduated from the Huaiyin Institute of
Technology, majoring in accountancy.

Mr. Shen Mingming, aged 59, is the manager of the
administration and human resource department of Wuxi
Pan-Asia. He joined the Group in 2010 and is responsible
for the daily management of the Group’s human resource,
administration and logistics services. Before joining the Group,
he worked as deputy general director in Investment Invitation
Bureau of Yixing, the PRC. He graduated from Jiangsu Radio
and TV University majoring in industrial economy management.

Ms. Sun Ying, aged 33, is the manager of the business
development department of Wuxi Pan-Asia. She joined the
Group in 2003 and is responsible for the business development
and business management. She graduated from Yangzhou
University majoring in economy management.

Mr. Tang Weiqing, aged 51, the vice general manager of
SEEDRI. He has over 20 years of experience in environmental
protection engineering design. He joined SEEDRI in 2003 and
is responsible for the overall project engineering design of
SEEDRI. He graduated from Shanghai University of Technology
with a major in analytical chemistry.
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The Board is pleased to submit their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and has
its principal place of business in the PRC at No. 1 Chuanshan
Road, Dingshu Town, Yixing City, Jiangsu Province, PRC
214222 and its principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Suite 6302, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the sale of pipes, water
treatment and flue gas treatment products and equipment, as
well as undertaking of EP construction engineering projects,
provision of EP related professional services and manufacture of
EP construction materials.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the major customers and suppliers
of the Group during the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer BARFP

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEET
The largest supplier =AM FERE
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR ER R

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any shareholders of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.

HEEMARSRE Y FREALED S
—E-mEt - AT+ BLFET BBER
ARBEE -

FEERME

RARD—RARHASHSEMKLZAR - H
AP T EEEMIAPRTIHEETED
TEE)EAKI% (BRER : 214222) + &
REBZEBEE M AT BL2/FRNERIR
FFIRFFNB302FE ©

EERY
AREIEHFHESE KERREFLEE

EmkHRE  ARARRRERTIZEAR &
HRARBBEERS R EERREENE

FEERRUER

WA R ERERAREEERS RS2
SR

Percentage of
the Group’s total

HFEEEHBEzas L
Turnover Purchases
Bx8 2] ]
8.8% -
25.4% -
- 30.5%
- 93.1%

BEES REZETBEAL (ERELW
FAD HARBEMBR (BEERAEE AR
AIRAL%A L) RAEBRARERS KA ER %

Btk o
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profits of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2014 and the state of the Company’s and the
Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 45 to 50.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Profits attributable to equity holders of the Company, before
dividends, of RMB28,357,000 (2013: loss of RMB21,098,000)
have been transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2014, the distributable reserve of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB746,741,000 (2013:
RMB759,334,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the financial year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the financial year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings as at 31 December 2014 are set
out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Quanlong (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Lei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fan Yajun

Mr. Gan Yi (resigned on 7 May 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lai Wing Lee

Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny

Professor Wang Guozhen

30

MEBRER

AEERBE_T-NFE+-_A=+—HB 1L
BEE 2 mMEARBRAEERZA 2R
BN MERFEASEEE0H -

A] 9 5% i i

RANRREFHAEABGER (REFBRE) BA
R#08,357,0007T (T E—=4: HIEARK
21,098,0007T) EEEEFEE - BB HMmE
RIS HRERMIFE30 o
RZZE—HWE+-_A=+—8  AQaE)AH#

HHBRKHAANRE746,741,0007T (ZE—=
& AR#759,334,0007T) °

WE -  BERRE
AEERPBREENZNE - BERRHEZE
DHEBHRIHRRAE4 -

%

ARREARPHFERN 2 &
WERMEE29 -

FHEENYT

a8

WoE—mE+ A=+ A2 EEEERR
AR 2R MR 23 ¢

ES
RUBFENZERS :

BITES

BRERL (TE)

BEEL (fTHAa)

SEERELLE

HEEE (RZZ-DOFAALRABE)

BYFIITES
FEK M e
REEFHFE L
FTEPHE



Annual Report 2014 ¢ == —JF F 3R

Report of the Directors

EEERE

Mr. Fan Yajun retires from the office as executive Director
and Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny retires from the office as
independent non-executive Director at the forthcoming AGM
in accordance with article 108(A) of the Articles of Association
and all retiring directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the information disclosed in “Related Party
Transactions” in note 34 to the financial statements, no contract
of significance in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
2014, and there was no contract of significance between the
Company or a subsidiary of the Company with the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year under
review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong (“SFQ”)) as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
were as follows:

(a) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EFRERBITRAERELFN
HHABEE R - MR R IR
GRZEGRAR

» —ME+ZA=+—H XRAAIEEK
=& T[B(AE AR RN REMEBER (FER

BEEBFLBEGRI ([FHFREBERD] £
XVEB) 2 B fn « MEEER DSBS B A 8
RARRBIRIEE 7 KB E KR E3521&RF 2
e Ml iRBEEF IR G AR R B
IR RKBINT

u}l\

(a) RARFARGREERND 2 #EDH

Approximate
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Name of Director

EEnSR

Mr. Jiang Quanlong
BRELE

Mr. Jiang Lei
e piad

Mr. Fan Yajun
BRELE

Mr. Lai Wing Lee
R &

Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny

REHEAE

Professor Wang Guozhen

ITELHE

Nature of interest

EEME

Interest of controlled
corporation

Rz AE s

Beneficial interest
EnEn
Interest of controlled
corporation
X EHEEE S
Beneficial interest
EnEn
Beneficial interest
EnkEn
Beneficial interest
EnkEn
Beneficial interest
E\mﬂg
Beneficial interest

Equity percentage

derivatives of issued

Number of (share option) share capital

shares held BRESTETIA HERITRE

BERGEA (BRwE) ZBABEDL

(Note 1)  (Notes 1 and 4)
(Biat1) (Biet1k4)

581,568,000 (L) 69.23%
(Note 2)
(Hfst2)

400,000 (L) 0.05%

581,568,000 (L) 69.23%
(Note 3)
(H7:#3)

582,000 (L) 0.07%

400,000 (L) 0.05%

5,000,000 (L) 0.60%

1,000,000 (L) 0.12%

1,000,000 (L) 0.12%

1,000,000 (L) 0.12%
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(b) Interests in shares of the associated corporation of the (b) MAEQTEEEERD 2R
Company
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
share capital
of the
associated
Name of Number of corporation
associated shares hAEE L E
Name of Director Nature of Interest corporation interested BRITRA
EEnE EmME HEEEER BEERGEE ZHHBE DL
(Note 1)
(#15t1)
Mr. Jiang Quanlong Interest of spouse Praise Fortune (8] 0.16%
BRRBEEE foBrEs Limited
Mr. Jiang Lei Beneficial interest Praise Fortune 300 (L) 49.92%
BEEE BamEn Limited
Notes: FEE -

1. The letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in the
shares/underlying shares.

2. These 581,568,000 shares were registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by Praise Fortune Limited. Mr. Jiang
Quanlong is the sole director of Praise Fortune Limited and
he was deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Praise Fortune Limited was interested by virtue of the SFO.

3. These 581,568,000 shares were registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by Praise Fortune Limited. The total
number of issued shares in Praise Fortune Limited as at 31
December 2014 was 601 shares of US$1 each. Mr. Jiang
Lei held 300 shares being approximately 49.92% in Praise
Fortune Limited and was deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Praise Fortune Limited under the SFO.

4.  These interests represent the interests in underlying shares
in respect of share options granted by the Company to these
directors as beneficial owners, the details of which are set
out in the Share Option Scheme section stated below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, so far as
was known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
neither the Directors nor the chief executive had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

1. FEILIREESRRG,/EER
132 44 -

2. 3% %581,568,0000% % 17 LAPraise
Fortune LimitedZ % % & &2 I @
EEDESR - BRE%%E HPraise
Fortune Limitedz W —ZE = H1R
BESH KA KRIER AEEPrase
Fortune LimitedFT#iH 281D 2

s -

3. 3% 581,568,000 % 17 LAPraise
Fortune LimitedZ Z& B A HE
E 25 A © Praise Fortune Limited
RZTE—WFE+_A=+—RH2ZE
BTN A B0 ISR ET1E
TL 2 B tn o & % %t A4 1 B 3000% iR
% (B14949.92%) - IRIEESHE LB E
&0 - 3 % ST £ W AR B ¥ BPraise
Fortune LimitedFT358 2 I n s ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”), details of which are set
out in Note 31 to the financial statements. Details of
the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and their movements during the year ended
31 December 2014 were as follows:

Exercise
Price
per
Date of share  Vesting Exercise
Directors Grant EK  Period Period
Ex R A e HES igedilis
HK$
BT
Mr. Jiang Quanlong 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008t0  14/5/2009 to
ERERE 13/5/2009  13/5/2018
Mr. Jiang Lei 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008t0  14/5/2009 to
BEik 13/5/2009  13/5/2018
Mr. Fan Yajun 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008to  14/5/2009 to
BRELE 13/5/2009 13/5/2018
11/6/2012 0.83 11/6/2012t0  11/6/2013 to
10/6/2013 10/6/2022
Mr. Gan Vi (Note) 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008t0  14/5/2009 to
HBEE (i) 13/5/2009  13/5/2018
11/6/2012 0.83 11/6/2012t0  11/6/2013 to
10/6/2013 10/6/2022
Mr. Lai Wing Lee 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008t0  14/5/2009 to
BokFnE 13/5/2009  13/5/2018
11/6/2012 0.83 11/6/2012to0  11/6/2013 to
10/6/2013 10/6/2022
Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny  14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008to  14/5/2009 to
PEFAE 13/5/2009  13/5/2018
11/6/2012 0.83 11/6/2012t0  11/6/2013 to
10/6/2013 10/6/2022
Professor Wang Guozhen 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008to  14/5/2009 to
TAYHR 13/5/2009 13/5/2018
11/6/2012 0.83 11/6/2012t0  11/6/2013 to

10/6/2013 10/6/2022
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Number of Share Options
BREHE
Exercised/
Cancelled/ Balance
Balance Lapsed as at
as at during  31/12/2014
1/1/2014 Granted  the period IS

his during MR —E-mF
ZE-WE  theperiod BT/ apy:
-B-8 RER E: Ve =t-H
2EH ERH RES i

400,000 - - 400,000
400,000 - - 400,000
2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
1,000,000 - (1,000,000 -
1,000,000 - (1,000,000 -
500,000 - - 500,000
500,000 - - 500,000
500,000 - - 500,000
500,000 - - 500,000
500,000 - - 500,000
500,000 - - 500,000
10,800,000 - (2,000,000  8:800,000
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Continuous contract
employees

RUAHER

@it
Total

Note:

Date of
Grant
REAH
14/5/2008

11/6/2012

Exercise
Price
per
share
8k
i
HK$
BT

2.81

0.83

Vesting
Period
BEH

1
1
1
1

4/5/2008 to
3/5/2009
1/6/2012 to
0/6/2013

Exercise
Period
fidls

14/5/2009 to
13/5/2018
11/6/2013 to
10/6/2022

Mr. Gan Yi has resigned as executive Director of the Company on 7 May
2014. A total of 2,000,000 share options granted to Mr. Gan Yi lapsed
as a result of his resignation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Number of Share Options
BREHA

Exercised/
Cancelled/ Balance
Balance Lapsed as at
as at during  31/12/2014
1/1/2014 Granted  the period i
i during R —E-DF
ZE-[E  theperod BTE/ +=4
-g-B  WEm Ba#/ =t-F
&8 ERE BANM &8
10,000,000 - (1,000,0000 9,000,000
30,000,000 - (1,500,0000 28,500,000
40,000,000 - (2,500,0000 37,500,000
50,800,000 - (4,500,0000 46,300,000

BT

HRAEER _Z—NFRAAEBRITARQFH
TEEZ - ARNEET BYFHREAENAH
2,000,000 B A% 4 B & 23K -

EFBRORESZET

B Lt e AR AT BIFT IR ER & S

RAER

B - ARRSHEZER AR KM ER
EEAEENG)-PNCIRiZ: S AVASCI oS- SN
EXTEBWB AR RS EREAMEAR
Bk ErmER -
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FRBERPRE LT R0 B R
fizE@R%E

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

AZE—mEF=A=+—H  HAAT
EFRESTHARRS - FIAL (K
AREFLESTHABRIN) NARA
2B AR T BRI ES R
DI B30T R 2 B R MM 2 N

So far as was known to the Directors and chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2014, the following persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO: KB
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the RAEATRMGREERG &R
Company
Approximate
Equity percentage of
Number of derivatives issued share
Name Nature of interest shares held (share option) capital
BAFTETIR HEBITRAE
L EamnE FisROHAE (BBRRE) ZBRED
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(HriE1) (Biat1)
Praise Fortune Limited Beneficial interest 581,568,000 (L) 69.23%
BanfEn
Mr. Jiang Xin Interest of controlled corporation 581,568,000 (L) 69.23%
BakE REHEEER (Note 2)
(Hfit2)
Beneficial interest 2,000,000 (L) 0.24%
Eaks
Ms. Qian Yuanying (Note 3) Interest of spouse 581,568,000 (L) 69.23%
Bt (Hi#3) [y Fa
Interest of spouse 400,000 (L) 0.05%
FiB s
Ms. Li Jingru (Note 4) Interest of spouse 583,568,000 (L) 69.47%
WL L (Hit4) [y Fa
Ms. Chai Yongping (Note 5) Interest of spouse 582,150,000 (L) 69.30%
st (Hi25) [y Fa
Interest of spouse 400,000 (L) 0.05%
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Notes:

1.

The Letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares/
underlying shares.

These Shares were registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Praise Fortune Limited. The total number of issued
shares in Praise Fortune Limited as at 31 December 2014 was 601
shares of US$1 each. These 601 shares were owned as to 300
shares being approximately 49.92% by Mr. Jiang Lei, an executive
Director, 300 shares being approximately 49.92% by Mr. Jiang Xin
and 1 share being approximately 0.16% by Ms. Qian Yuanying.
The sole director of Praise Fortune Limited is Mr. Jiang Quanlong,
an executive Director. Under the SFO, Mr. Jiang Lei, Mr. Jiang
Xin and Mr. Jiang Quanlong were deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Praise Fortune Limited.

Ms. Qian Yuanying is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Quanlong and was
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares and underlying
shares in which Mr. Jiang Quanlong was deemed to be interested.

Ms. Li Jingru is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Xin and was therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Jiang Xin
was deemed to be interested.

Ms. Chai Yongping is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Lei and was
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares and underlying
shares in which Mr. Jiang Lei was deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the
Company has not been notified by any person (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests

or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than the service contracts of the Directors,
concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

B3

1. FEILEAEBALRERG HEERG
2R e

2. % ZERED LAPraise Fortune LimitedZ %
EEXWHEEZEE  Praise Fortune
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COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

Non-Competition Undertaking

Under the restrictive covenants of a share purchase agreement
dated 1 December 2007 executed among (i) YY Holdings as
vendor, (i) Praise Fortune Limited, Mr. Jiang Quanlong, Ms.
Qian Yuanying, Mr. Jiang Lei and Mr. Jiang Xin as covenantors,
and (i) the Company as the purchaser, each of Praise Fortune
Limited, Ms. Qian Yuanying, Mr. Jiang Quanlong, Mr. Jiang
Lei and Mr. Jiang Xin (collectively the “Covenantors”) has
undertaken that he/she/it will not and shall procure his/her/its
close associates will not:

(@)

38

at any time disclose to any person, or himself/herself/
itself use for any purpose, and shall use his/her/its best
endeavours to prevent the publication or disclosure of, any
information concerning the business, accounts or finances
of any Group company, or any of its clients’, suppliers’
or customers’ transactions or affairs, which may, or may
have, come to his/her/its knowledge;

at any time during which the Company is listed on
the Stock Exchange and for so long as each of the
Covenantors and their respective close associates
collectively hold, whether individually or taken together,
30% or more of the issued Shares or is regarded as the
controlling shareholder(s) of the Company under the
Listing Rules or for a period of two years from the date of
the Listing, whichever is the longest period of time:

(i) directly or indirectly solicit, interfere with, employ or
endeavour to entice away from any Group company
with a view to competing with the Group any
person who, to his/her/its knowledge, is now, or
has during the 12 months preceding the date of the
share purchase agreement been, a client, customer,
supplier or employee of, or has been in the habit of
dealing with, any Group company;

(i)  at any time use the name or trading style of any
Group company, or any trademarks or logos or
device similar in appearance to any trademarks, in
the PRC, Hong Kong or any other part of the world,
or represent himself as carrying on or continuing
or being connected with any Group company or its
business for any purposes whatsoever; and/or

EERBERBCED

TR A

IR YY Holdings (B 77) - (i) Praise Fortune
Limited * $RBELA - Bt B&EEAE
Rg&LE GEEAN) BiVAAR (EF) K=
SR+ F+ZA—HE L2 BRBE 2RI
&3 » Praise Fortune Limited ~ &%+ -
BREAE  BRLELRBEELE (HBA X
FEAD) DRIEE - EE T e B SR e EE R
BALHIE
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(i)  directly or indirectly carry on or be engaged or
concerned or interested in the businesses of (i)
the production of water treatment and flue gas
treatment and solid waste treatment equipment and
components and pipes; (ii) the sale and installation
of water treatment and flue gas treatment and solid
waste treatment equipment and pipes; and (iii) the
contracting of water treatment and flue gas treatment
and solid waste treatment projects, being the current
principal businesses of the Group.

Each of the Covenantors has undertaken in favour of the
Company under the share purchase agreement to procure the
provision to the Company of all information necessary for the
enforcement of the above undertaking. Each of the Covenantors
further undertakes in favour of the Company to make a
statement in the annual report of the Company confirming
compliance by it and its affiliates with the terms of the non-
competition undertaking in the share purchase agreement.
The Company has received the confirmation in relation to
compliance by them and their affiliates with the terms of the
non-competition undertaking in the share purchase agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2014,

Each of the Covenantors has confirmed that he/she/it is not
currently engaged in any business, which directly or indirectly
competes or may compete with the Group’s business.

Benxi Fanya Environmental Heat & Power Co., Ltd. (“Benxi
Fanya”) is owned as to 80% by Asia Global Tech Group Limited
(“AGT (HK)"), and as to 20% by an independent third party.
AGT (HK) is beneficially owned as to 60%, 20% and 20% by
Ms. Qian Yuanying (the spouse of Mr. Jiang Quanlong), Mr.
Jiang Lei and Mr. Jiang Xin (both of whom are sons of Mr.
Jiang Quanlong) respectively. The permitted business scope on
the business licence of Benxi Fanya includes, among others,
research and consultation of EP technology, and design of EP
engineering. As at the date of this annual report, Benxi Fanya
was principally engaged in generating electricity and heat,
and was not engaged or interested in any businesses which
compete with the current principal businesses of the Group.
Jiangsu Tianyuan Technologies Limited (“Jiangsu Tianyuan”)
is owned by the associates of Mr. Fang Guohong, a former
executive Director of the Company who resigned on 25 March

iy EHEXEERE MBS REAE
ERBETZEBINEPHEGE
&= B (VEEKEERERERE
NEEEEY R RE R RE
W (i) K BRI M A% SR B K ] B B
EYRELBELEMHE RTE
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2009. The permitted business scope on the business licence
of Jiangsu Tianyuan includes, among others, research and
development of denitrification EP equipment and technology,
manufacture of FGD EP equipment, desulphurization
absorption tower and flue glass flake anticorrosive material
and denitrification EP equipment. As at the date of this
annual report, Jiangsu Tianyuan was principally engaged in
the business of producing thermal insulation components,
and was not engaged or interested in any businesses which
compete with the current principal businesses of the Group.
The permitted scope of business of each of Benxi Fanya and
Jiangsu Tianyuan is relatively wide, but it is not unusual for a
corporate entity to provide for a broader scope of business in its
corporate documents to allow for flexibility. At present, neither
Benxi Fanya nor Jiangsu Tianyuan has any plan to vary their
respective business licences to exclude or alter the permitted
activities as set out therein.

Mr. Jiang Quanlong is also the chairman and one of the
executive directors of China Rare Earth Holdings Limited
(“CRE”), a company whose securities are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. CRE and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of rare earth
products and refractory products. As the Group’s principal
business is to provide integrated EP solutions in areas such as
water and flue gas treatments, the current principal businesses
of the Group and those of CRE and its subsidiaries do not
compete with each other.

Under the restrictive covenants of several service agreements
dated 1 December 2007 between the Company and each of the
executive Directors, the executive Directors gave undertakings
similar to the wordings stated in paragraph (b) above of the said
share purchase agreement.

The independent non-executive Directors shall review, at least
on an annual basis, the compliance with the non-competition
undertaking by each of such persons on their existing or future
competing business and the Company shall disclose the result
of such review either through the annual report of the Company,
or by way of announcement to the public. The independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed the
compliance by each of such persons with the non-competition
undertaking for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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As the controlling shareholders namely, Praise Fortune Limited,
Mr. Jiang Lei and Mr. Jiang Xin and Mr. Jiang Quanlong as
the sole director of Praise Fortune Limited have given non-
competition undertakings in favour of the Company and none of
them has interests in other business that compete or are likely
to compete with the business of the Group, the management
and operation of the operating entities are independent from
each other. The Directors are of the view that the Group
is capable of carrying on its business independently of the
controlling shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 160 of
the annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The retirement schemes of the Company and its subsidiaries are
primarily in form of contributions to the Hong Kong mandatory
provident fund and China statutory public welfare fund.
Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note 7 to
the financial statements.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the shares,
they are advised to consult an expert.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31
December 2012 was audited by CCIF CPA Limited. Due to the
merger of business with PCP CPA Limited resulting in Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited operating as the merged firm, CCIF
CPA Limited retired as auditor of the Company with effect from
6 June 2013. Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited was appointed
as auditor of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of
next annual general meeting.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been audited by Crowe Horwath (HK)
CPA Limited. Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

By order of the Board
Jiang Quanlong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF PAN ASIA ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pan
Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages
45 to 159, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

BEEEE (&8 SMEBMERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Member Crowe Horwath International

& REE BRET7H BER0%E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2015

Sze Wing Chun
Practising Certificate Number PO6035
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TURNOVER
Cost of sales and services rendered

GROSS PROFIT

Other revenue

Other net gain

Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Income tax expenses

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive loss for
the year (after tax and reclassification
adjustments)

Item that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
- Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements to presentation
currency

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Note
03
BEA 4
e RIBERBAA
£7
HApIA 4
HApFMA 4
WERD P
— B RITREX
Hip @B
BARA 5(a)
BRRIAT (ER) 5
FEREX 6
FhRf/(EH)
EMENREER
(REREEHHEAE)

I EEFN N EERB L
EH -
- BEMBRREZIEE
EXZERZR

FhZELE (BR) 85

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
587,147 587,980
(435,702) (523,091)
151,445 64,889
4,167 4,398

38 335
(13,789) (7,112)
(51,871) (69,692)
(42,644) (9,868)
(1,004) (976)
46,342 (18,026)
(22,939) (8,371)
23,403 (21,397)
(99) (1,114)
23,304 (22,511)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
- Basic

- Diluted

BTALEERT(BH) :
Z/NCIE 2 DN
FEERR S

UTATREERZERS
(1R ¥
/NIE 2D
e

SREH (ER)
— &K

- 88

The notes on pages 51 to 159 form part of these financial

statements.
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Note
Pt &£

12

2014 2013
—Z—mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
28,357 (21,098)
(4,954) (299)
23,403 (21,397)
28,258 (22,212)
(4,954) (299)
23,304 (22,511)

RMB3.47 cents
ARW¥3.475%

RMB3.39 cents
AR#3.39%

RMB(2.64) cents
AR#(2.64)7

RMB(2.64) cents
AR (2.649)

FEE1EEFI0B ZMEB AN B RERZ
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As at 31 December 2014
RZE-—WF+-_A=+—H

The Group The Company
*5E 47
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE “T—=F —E-mE “T—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
&% AR®TR AREFT AR®FR ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Prepaid lease payments BNBEHE 13 53,339 54,551 - -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERK 14 451,690 366,325 441 537
Available-for-sale financial asset AftHELREE 15 9,000 9,000 - -
Prepayments for consultation, R MGHEER
marketing and promotional SERBEMR
services 16 130,000 - - -
Investments in subsidiaries NHBARZ®RE 17 - - 526,953 518,437
644,029 429,876 527,394 518,974
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Prepaid lease payments BIHERE 13 1,195 1,178 - =
Inventories FE 18 244,270 97,365 - -
Trade and other receivables N E 5 & E M FIE 19 506,684 415,568 251,465 247,106
Pledged bank deposits BEMETER 33 6,543 10,616 - =
Tax recoverable AR ERE 27(a) 20,001 = - =
Cash and bank balances e RRITEH 21 379,236 571,326 558 3,671
1,157,929 1,096,053 252,023 250,777
CURRENT LIABILITIES bid -0
Trade and other payables BNE S REMTIE 22 176,795 175,985 21,097 63,451
Short-term bank loans RHRITER 23 14,000 14,000 - -
Deposits received and receipts Blire RIBUGR
in advance 337,347 151,728 - =
Tax payable FER i 27(a) 10,888 3,389 - -
530,030 345,102 21,097 63,451
NET CURRENT ASSETS nHEERE 618,899 750,951 230,926 187,326
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEHERTDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,262,928 1,180,827 758,320 706,300
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBAR
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAR 27(b) (18,202) (14,930) - -
Deferred government grants BT HE 28 (4,709) = - =
(22,911) (14,930) - -
NET ASSETS HERE 1,240,017 1,165,897 758,320 706,300
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 2931 ]
Share capital AR 29 78,073 74,872 78,073 74,872
Reserves & 30 1,170,242 1,094,369 680,247 631,428
Equity attributable to owners TAFEEA
of the Company MBS 1,248,315 1,169,241 758,320 706,300
Non-controlling interests FRES (8,298) (3,344) - =
TOTAL EQUITY gaus 1,240,017 1,165,897 758,320 706,300

The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 159 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

KEEEeR _T-_AF=A=1++tH
DR B EA58 = F1598 2 476 7%

BEAE
2

27 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

HBRELA MINESKREE

Jiang Quanlong TEREE Jiang Lei BE
Director FE Director FE
The notes on pages 51 to 159 form part of these financial FL1EEF159B 2 i B AN SR % 2
statements. — 2R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTHAAES
Enterprise ~ Statutory Share Non-
Share Share  Special  Capital expansion  surplus Translation ~ option Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  Subtotal interests equity
GRME EEER Rk AR fig
R RAOER HURE RIEE il i ERERE ffF  REERN it fig 1]
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETRL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARMTRT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
MNote29) (Note30f) (Nofe 30 (Note 30i) (Note300) (Note 308 (Note 304d) (Note i)
(hfakg) (WisEaon) (Makaoqm) (Kizisom) (Kfaksow) (KfsEson) (BisEaony) (Mzsomi)
As at 1 January 2013 R=E-=%-f-A 74812 419,229 94,225 133 46,39 55,668 (1448 16367 488875 1,188,316 (3,045) 1,185,271
Loss for the year ENER = = = = - - - - (1,008 (21,009 (299 (21397)
Other comprehensive loss K2 &R
- Exchange differences - HEEBERF 25
on franglation of financial ~ EMELZERZE
statements to presentation
currency - - - - - - (1114) - - (119 - (1,114)
Total comprehensive loss ~ FAZEBELE
for the year - - - - - - (1,114) - (21,008 (22212 (299 (22,511)
Transfer to reserves BROEE - - - - 311 311 - - (622) - - -
Equity-settled share-based ~ RAZERA
transactions EBR5 - - - - - - - 3,137 - 3,137 - 3,137
Asat 31 December 2013~ R-F-=£
and 1 January 2014 t-R=+-BR
ZZ-PE-A-H 74872 419,229 94,225 133 46,706 55,979 (8562 19504 467,155 1,169,241 (3,344) 1,165,897
Profitloss) for the year &R /() - - - - - - - - BT 23T (4954 23,403
Other comprehensive loss Kt 2 &R
- Exchange diferences - BEEHEEE 2
on franglation of financial ~ EMELZEREE
statements to presentation
currency - - - - - - (99) - - (99) - (99)
Total comprehensive loss ~~ FAZEBRLE
for the year - - - - - - (99) - 2837 28258 (4,954) 23,304
Transfer to retained profits ~ RERELAER
upon lapse of share options ~ ZRZ 47 - - - - - - - (1919 112 - - -
Transfer to reserves EREEE - - - - 5,748 5,748 - - (11,49) - - -
Issug of new ordinary shares &7 EEMR 3201 48,976 - - - - - - - M - am
Transaction costs attributable %474 L@ E(L
to issue of new ordinary RHHA
shares - [131) - - - - - - - 131 - [131)
Asat 31 December 2014 RZE-ME
TZA=1-H 78,073 466,844 94,225 133 52,454 61,721 (8,661) 17,592 485928 1,248,315 (8,298) 1,240,017

The notes on pages 51

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REETRER

Operating activities
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Dividend income from unlisted equity
securities

Equity-settled share-based
transactions

Gain on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Government grants

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Impairment loss on other receivables

Interest expenses

Interest income

Loss on write-off of property, plant
and equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
on trade receivables

Reversal of impairment loss
on other receivables

Changes in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and

other receivables
Increase in prepayments for consultation,
marketing and promotional services
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in deposits received
and receipts in advance

#EEIH
ERBEAES (BE)

=

BHENEENR
WE - BERRBZNE
FEMBRAESZ
BEBA
BAER B R
R5
HENE - BER
BYA L ON
BT B
EWE 778 2 RIEER
HitERHOR 2 BIERE
FERX
ST ON
MiEY= - BE k&
ZER
FRE HHIEL
RIERERER
HitEARIE
RIEERER

EEROUN
7E (Em),/ md
EAE 5 K H M 50R

(50),/ WD

B MIGHERE ERY

R FIB 0
FERYE 5 K E Al 5IRE N
Bz kIR
#m,/ CRd)

Cash (used in)/generated from operations  #EE%% (FfH) EEfzH&

PRC Enterprises Income Tax paid EASGEMEiR T
Net cash (used in)/generated from EEEE (A EBEZ
operating activities B&iBH

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E—MmE —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARET T

46,342 (18,026)
1,195 955
28,919 20,567

- (750)

- 3,137

(51) (441)

(908) =
23,944 1,370

- 1,199

1,004 976

(2,187) (2,505)

13 =

(161) (31)
(343) =
97,767 6,451
(146,905) 80,989
(28,055) 62,790
(216,500) =
810 2,133

185,619 (56,943)
(107,264) 95,420
(32,169) (7,418)
(139,433) 88,002
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2014 2013
—Z—mE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARBT T
Investing activities BRETH
Interest received 2UFI B 2,187 2,505
Dividends received from unlisted equity BIELEMRAES
securities WER 2 % 2 - 750
Payments for acquisition of prepaid ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%?ﬁ( BRI3K
lease payments - (14,434)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  BE MK
plant and equipment FriS30R 175 1,022
Payments for acquisition of property, ,E%,\#%% J?};E%&
plant and equipment BN (114,413) (76,399)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BHERRITERRLD 4,073 7,884
Proceeds from government grants BUS BT 30R 5,617 -
Net cash used in investing activities REFHMACHEEHE (102,361) (78,672)
Financing activities MEEE
Interest paid BEFE (1,004) (976)
Proceeds from issue of new ordinary shares BITHE Hxﬁfr%%'ék 52,177 -
Payment for transaction costs attributable to S BT L B
issue of new ordinary shares FEMRR SR (1,361) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEZDELE (R zHe
financing activities BHE 49,812 (976)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and FEERERERNTELEE
cash equivalents for the year (RD)/ BmsHE (191,982) 8,354
Cash and cash equivalents EPzBeRERARE
at beginning of the year EH 571,326 564,078
Effect of foreign exchange rate SEEFRETERE
changes, net (108) (1,106)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FERZHERERTAE
the year HH 379,236 571,326
Analysis of the balance of cash and ReRERBEME
cash equivalents BEEah
Cash and bank balances B4 NiR1TaER 379,236 571,326

The notes on pages 51 to 159 form part of these financial

E51HEF169E 2 W BAN 8= 2
—815 -

statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
and registered in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and
Suite 6302, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of
environmental protection (“EP”) products and equipment,
undertaking EP construction engineering projects, provision
of EP related professional services, and manufacture of EP
construction materials in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and investment holding.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be
those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional
and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit” , which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2.

52

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of polices and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 39.

2.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2.

54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

c)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset, or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(g)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it
is determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value is
evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for
as follows, depending on their classification:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

d)

Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out in note 2(s)(v) and (iv).

Investments in securities which do not fall into
securities held for trading or held-to-maturity
securities are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve. As an exception to this, investments
in equity securities that do not have a quoted price
in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(g)). Dividend
income from equity securities is recognised in profit
or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note
2(s)(v).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

e)

56

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(g)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives.

Over the shorter of the term
of the lease and 20 years

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures

and equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements 1 year to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Molding 1 year
Plant and machineries 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

e)

f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, except for land
held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease,
which is accounted for as being held under
a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f) Leased assets (Continued)
ii)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

iiiy  Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

g) Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale financial asset
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

- For trade receivables and other current
receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEEHRFK ()

(Continued)

g) Impairment of assets (Continued) 9) XERE (#)
i) Impairment of investments in equity securities ) BREIAEZFFRERAEME
and other receivables (Continued) WskiE 2 eE (&)
For available-for-sale financial asset, the - HAUHEEemE
cumulative loss that has been recognised Ems ' ERAF
in the fair value reserve is reclassified BERFBERN R

to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale
financial asset are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such asset is recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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2.

62

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- prepaid lease payments; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEEBE ()
(Continued)
g) Impairment of assets (Continued) 9) XERE (#)
ii)  Impairment of other assets (Continued) ) BtEERE (&)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s fisl & 17 7 (£ ] B B8 B
recoverable amount is estimated. - B@HsEEZA
W o] %58 o
Calculation of recoverable amount —  FrERKEESEE
The recoverable amount of an asset is BEZAKEEEE

the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEEBEK (])
(Continued)
g) Impairment of assets (Continued) 9) XERE (#)
ii)  Impairment of other assets (Continued) ) BtEERE (&)

Recognition of impairment losses R EEE
An impairment loss is recognised in profit & ESEFTE 2
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, HeELBMNZK
or the cash-generating unit to which it E{E B A H A Y E

64

belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying
amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

9)

h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

iii)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 2(g)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of available-for-sale financial
asset and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period
relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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2.

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

h)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of
an asset or a group of assets, where the customer is
able to specify the major structural elements of the
design. The accounting policy for contract revenue
is set out in note 2(s)(iij. When the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
at the end of the reporting period. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately. Where the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of
the reporting period are recorded at the net amount
of costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses and progress billings, and are
presented in the statement of financial position as
the “Amounts due from customers for contract work”
(as an asset) or the “Amounts due to customers for
contract work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress
billings not yet paid by the customer are included
under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
presented as “Deposits received and receipts in
advance”.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

k)

m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts, except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2(g)).

Prepayments for consultation, marketing and
promotional services

Prepayments for consultation, marketing and
promotional services are charged to profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the service
providers.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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2.

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

n)

0)

9))

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction from the proceeds.

Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

ii)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p) Employee benefits (Continued)

ii)

iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share option reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

a)

70

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided that those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary differences
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

a)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

q) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities
on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

r

s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

i) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax and other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discount and returns.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

s) Revenue recognition (Continued)
ii)  Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, revenue from a
fixed price contract is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the percentage of contract
costs incurred to date to estimated total
contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

iii)  Revenue from professional services

Revenue from professional services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

iv)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

v)  Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s rights to
receive payment is established.

vi)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is credited to deferred government grants
account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

s)

t)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
vii)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Translation of foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). These
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand
except for per share data, which is different from the
Company’s functional currency of Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) as the majority of the Group’s transactions is
denominated in RMB.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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2.

76

—THEFE+_A=t+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

u)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of those entities within the Group
which have a functional currency other than RMB
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at the closing
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the translation
reserve.

On the disposal of any of such entities, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

v) Related parties

a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

v)  Related parties (Continued)

b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

V. The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

vi.  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in note (v)(a).

vii. A person identified in note (v)(a)(i has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

w)

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

X)

80

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s Chairman of the board of
directors, who is the Group’s chief operating decision
maker, for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs and one new interpretation that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company.
Amendments to Investment Entities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

HK (IFRIC*) 21 Levies

* IFRIC represents the IFRIC Interpretations Committee

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new or
amended HKFRSs are disclosed below.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment Entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as
defined in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities are
required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss. These amendments do not have an impact
on these financial statements as the Company does not
qualify to be an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria
in HKAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as they are consistent with the
policies already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures required
for an impaired asset or cash generating unit whose
recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal. The application of amendments does not have
an impact on these financial statements because there is
no impaired non-financial asset or cash generating unit
which the recoverable amount is based on fair value less
costs of disposal.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from
discontinuing hedging accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets
certain criteria. The amendments do not have an impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not have
any derivatives that subject to novation.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability
to pay a levy imposed by a government should be
recognised. The amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the guidance is consistent
with the Group’s existing accounting policies.

TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER

4,

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

B BREE (8)

&8 (ARG KBRERBEER) 5
2155 - A&

R S AR B E R N BT

BECAB  ANESEAKER
E.ﬁrft&l% B M FBIIAY
EUWBHRRABTE -

EXRT HUlARHEMS

NET GAIN

Turnover

Turnover represents the net amounts
received and receivable for goods
sold, and revenue from construction
contracts and rendering of
professional services by the Group.

The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in

turnover during the year is as follow:

Sales of EP products and equipment

Sales of EP construction materials

Revenue from EP construction
engineering projects

Revenue from EP related
professional services

A

3]

EXBREAAEEHEEERD
MRS HWALA K
RUBEXMEMELLZ
BUCEIE K Wk IEFRE o

FARTECDREXRBAERZ
TEHFBADT

RIREMMEEZHE
RIRBZEMB ZHE
RERREZRIEZWA

KERRBEAERRE WA

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
478,564 541,888
102,666 2,986
1,620 39,101
4,297 4,005
587,147 587,980
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

4. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER 4.
NET GAIN (Continued)

Other revenue Htdk A

Interest income on bank deposits IRITIFF BURA

Total interest income on financial WIER A FERER AR
assets not at fair value through ZERMEEZ
profit or loss A EW A B EE

Dividend income from unlisted equity  FF F AR ARZE 5 2 R B WA
securities

Reversal of impairment loss U E 5 3R IB R E R E RO
on trade receivables

Reversal of impairment loss o e W SR IE R (B S 1 1 B
on other receivables

Rental income from operating lease wERE 2 He WA

Government grants* IR T 4 By

Sundry income IR

‘* The amount included the government grants of

approximately RMB658,000 (2013: Nil) relating to the
subsidies from the PRC government for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment which was released from
deferred government grants to profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Other net gain H Bl A

Gain on disposals of property, HEDE  BEK
plant and equipment Btk 2 W

Loss on write-off of property, plant WEEE - BB L& E
and equipment 2 518

Net exchange loss b 5 B8 5 58
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‘E‘#ﬁ*‘ Hfhily A B H 18
KA ()

2014 2013

—E=—MmE =4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARET T

2,187 2,505

2,187 2,505

- 750

161 31

343 =

53 53

908 =

515 1,059

4,167 4,398

ZE B ER A BB

W% - BERREMIELNERA
7B 29 A R #658,0007T (=& —
= E) NBFEE - EREE
“E-WETA=+—HIFE
BRERFHB =R -

2014 2013
—E—mf —F—=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETIT

51 441

(13) =

- (106)

38 335
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBRAETN (BGR)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging the BRE AR (E18) BEINKR T3&
following: H -
2014 2013
—E—MmF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETTT
a) Finance costs: a) MERE:
Interest on bank loans wholly ARAFAZHEER
repayable within five years ZIRITEFZFE 1,004 976
Total interest expenses on WIER A TFENEZRAR
financial liabilities not at fair ZEMBEZHERX
value through profit or loss aza 1,004 976
b) Staff costs (including directors’ b) BIH® (BIFEFH£)
emoluments) (Note): (B&E) :
— Contributions to defined — ERHEFR NG B 5R
contribution retirement (H1727)
plans (Note 7) 1,782 1,390
— Salaries, wages and — I8 HF&hEMER
other benefits 20,876 19,256
— Equity-settled share-based — ARG E R 1 E A R
payments - 3,137
22,658 23,783
c) Other items: c) HfEA:
Amortisation of prepaid TEfT TR EFRIE 2 B 5H
lease payments 1,195 955
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN <
— audit services — BT AR 1,373 1,317
— other services — H AR 437 415
Cost of inventories (Note) GFEA (K73) 430,876 473,494
Depreciation of property, plant M BEERREBZ
and equipment e 28,919 20,567
Impairment loss on trade FEWE 5 /I8 2 BB 18~
receivables* 23,944 1,370
Impairment loss on other H b EWsRIE 2
receivables* BB EE - 1,199
Operating lease charges rEHEE A
— leasing of properties —HAMmE 1,984 2,099
- leasing of equipment — FHRRE 6 6
Research and development s X
expenses* 16,975 4,172

These items are included in other operating expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

ZERBFAGEREREMEE
Wegn sk 2 HAmE &R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

5. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
(Continued)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging the
following: (Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2014, cost of inventories
includes approximately RMB24,978,000 (2013: RMB2,606,000)
relating to staff costs and depreciation, which amount is also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above.

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income represents:

Current Tax: BPRATRIA :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B 7b 2 PTIS
— Provision for the year — RNFEREME
(note 27 (a)) (Bt:t27(a)
Deferred Tax: EERIT :
Origination and reversal of ERUEREZEAREE
temporary differences (note 27(b)) (Btzt27(b)
Income tax expenses PSR

i) The Company and its subsidiaries incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands are not subject
to any income tax pursuant to the rules and
regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

ii) PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at
25% of the estimated assessable profits of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.
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BRIRRRF(B5R) (#])

BEAaES S (BR) EMBR TS
] (&)

it -

HE-_Z—NE+-_A=+—HILEE -
FERABELH AR K24,978,0007T
—ZT—=%F: AR¥2,606,0007T) B
BEIRARTENSE  ZE2BENEH
BIFFA LIS BIRTRRBSEE

REeRaSRrREfMZEKRE
RZMER

a) REcBEmkEtE2EKER
ZBAE ¢

2014 2013
—Z—mE —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFTT
19,667 1,713
3,272 1,658
22,939 3,371

) ARAERERRBREX
BB ML M B L
AIRERES B MK
M 2 Bl R Z R R R AR A
BABNERMAER

iy  FRECEMESRIBE
iN/NEET N SlE ) vl b
BRARIREE_Z—MNO
Fh-_FT—=F+_-A
=t+—HIEFEZMEF
JE &R i v FI IR B R 25%

HE o
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)

a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or a)
loss and other comprehensive income represents:

(Continued)

il No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013 as the Group did not have
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during

both years.

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting b)
profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates is as follows:

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before

taxation calculated at the statutory

rates applicable to respective
tax jurisdictions

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Tax effect of withholding tax
at 10% on distributable profits
of the subsidiaries established
in the PRC

Income tax expenses

BREADER  (E51R)

BERNES B RAER
ZIEERE T BERBLA
wHL(BE) 2 BEBREA

TAMBRAXZRBTE

RIER R AR B ARIE
BEzZRETE
RARBR Y 2 B AR
A 2K m FiE10%
TR B TaIR

b %

FrSBs

RGEalRaRAMZERR
RZMFR (8]

ZHiEE - (%)

i) BHRAEEREEZE_ZT
—NFERZE—=F+
—A=t+—HLEFEEY
ERAEAB ZERN R
A MR Z W EEE L
ERBEBFETAE L &
1 o

REABEAE 2 BIET HE
giEAN(BER) 2HEN
T

2014 2013
—EZ—MmE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARET T

46,342 (18,026)

12,427 (3,644)

2,014 2,912

5,226 3,280

3,272 823

22,939 3,371

87



Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited ¢ jZ R R{REBHR A T

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE

88

“E-NFEF+_A=+—HLFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS
Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan managed by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
Group (the employer) and its employees makes monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The contributions from each
of the employer and employees are subject to a cap
of HK$1,500 per month (HK$1,250 per month prior to
June 2014) and thereafter contributions are voluntary.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a state-sponsored retirement
plan operated by the local government in the PRC and
these subsidiaries make mandatory contributions to the
state-sponsored retirement plan to fund the employees
retirement benefits. The retirement contributions paid by
these subsidiaries are based on a certain percentage
of the relevant portion of the payroll of all qualifying
employees in accordance with the relevant regulations in
the PRC and are charged to profit or loss as incurred. The
Group discharges its retirement obligations upon payment
of the retirement contributions to the state-sponsored
retirement plan operated by the local governments in the
PRC.

A new law of the PRC on employment contracts (the
“Employment Contract Law”) was adopted by the
Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress of
the PRC in 2008 and became effective on 1 January 2008.
Compliance with the requirements under the new law, in
particular, the requirement of severance payment and non-
fixed term employment contract led to increase in the staff
costs of the Group.

BREEFI A
ERHFRATE

BIEE B8 6 TEE T EES &
EERBEORT  AEEELH
ERBEEERERBIEOEETFER
MEBSEELEBFEAESTE
([2E2srEl]) - BESEEIJI A
W ZFEAEE 2 EETUR KA
gl - REBRESHE  ~5E (BB
Bx) REEBESASEKEEM
BURA (E&RLATIEAEEFENE
Bl) Z25%MZTEIEH 3k - B
FMEEE RSB 2 3K A1,500/8 7T
(ZZE—WNFNAAS A1,250%8
J0) B LR - Be] AFEFEIMER - ¥
ZETE 2 BB AR -

REBRPEKZZME LR ZE
B2 Eh B E i B EEY hE
REBZRINBEHE S - ZEH B
N A %I B KA B 2 RIKAR M T
R B EHFAREE 2 RIKER
RUED - ZFTEMBRARZE
RERRDERAERERERS
MeBBIO 2B EBDLL » RIR
BEPBECARMRTE  LRRAEL
ZEEFABGER NEBEMH
BT BT EEY B REB 2
BASFEHERZ RSB EITH
REBRNENTEZEE -

REFEBHERZE (BB RIE]
R-ZEZNFEEZBEARKERARE
FHREEERMYBE —_TENF—
A—BRRER - BTHERZIR
R REAE RIFEEHRS
BARZAEEHRAKEEZETHK
A0
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS (Continued)

Pursuant to the new Employment Contract Law, the
PRC subsidiaries are required to enter into non-fixed
term employment contract with employees who have
worked for more than 10 years or with whom a fixed term
employment has been concluded for 2 consecutive terms.
The employer is required to make a severance payment to
the employee when the term of the employment contract
expires unless the employee voluntarily terminates the
contract or voluntarily rejects the offer to renew the
contract in which case the terms are no worse off than
the terms of other employment contracts available to him/
her. The severance payment will equal to the monthly
wages times the number of full years that the employee
has been working for the employer. The minimum wages
requirement has also been imposed. Fines will be imposed
for any breach of the Employment Contract Law.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with the
schemes beyond the contributions described above.

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013 are as follows:

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans B

TERHFURIKET S

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

BEEFIRE (W)

BIEFEBERE  RREKEBA R
AHED TE10F I LB R EE
MR EEHREESERZES
FIVERETHREEER - KRR
EE LA FHIR S HEHE XA M
EEXMEHE KRIFEBEEHER
AR B FBERE RGN TER
HuESZEMEHERIKRZE
e BMEZINBEHEERZESR
BRAIEFRNZEEE BREETE
HTEEFH - INEERRETE
RE - HEBHEREZEMERE
DK o

AREBE R L A5 - HAERZ
FRF A EMEAA BN RIK
BAWEAEE -

ARERE-F-MER-T-=
F+- A=+ ALFEZEHEHK
R IRE BB -

2014 2013
—F—mF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT

1,782 1,390
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—F-MET-A=t+—BILERE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EFERESTHRAEMS
EMOLUMENTS
The directors of the Company are members of the senior HE_Z—NOFE-_T—=F+=

A=+—HBILFE KQAREZEI
ABAEBSHREEEBKE - REL
BEERBRAER (F328) F
16116 2 1 A 7 & B (5622F) K
KIE78EEBEZEETHE T ¢

management of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013. Directors’ emoluments
disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule 11 to the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with
reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

2014 2013
—Z—@mE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETTT
Fees e 1,308 1,380
Salaries, allowances and Fre o R REM
other benefits Ik 674 657
Contributions to defined contribution FE R FCR KRG 2
retirement plans 3R 14 28
Equity-settled share-based payments A% AN 45 B R A0 1S 3R - 479
1,996 2,544
Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-E-ME+-A=+-ALEE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to defined
and other  contribution Equity-settled
benefits retirement share-based
g plans payments
Fees BER  CHEREH Sub-total BFER Total
Name of director EERA fig Hitf& FHEfE it BRin 8 1
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N 5 AE®TT ARBFT AE®TT ARBTT IN:1
Executive directors HTER
Mr. Jiang Quanlong BRELE
(note (i) (H12) 95 355 5 455 - 455
Mr. Jiang Lei BakE 818 305 5 1,128 - 1,128
Mr. Fan Yajun BRERE 95 - - 95 - 95
Mr. Gan Yi (note (i) HREE (W) 32 14 4 50 - 50
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Lai Wing Lee REK RS & 48 - - 48 - 48
Mr. Leung Shu Sun, 2RI A
Sunny 172 - - 172 - 172
Professor Wang Guozhen TEBHIKR 48 - - 48 - 48
1,308 674 14 1,996 - 1,996
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8.

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

EERERITRARNS
(#)

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-=E+-fA=t-BILEE

Salaries,  Contributions
allowances to defined
and other contribution Equity-settled
benefits retirement share-based
s plans payments
Fees EH R ERETRA Sub-total BALE Total
Name of director e e A fls BE 5 NGt i 50 k]
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBETT ARBTT ARBTT
Executive directors ~ B{TEE
Mr. Jiang Quanlong BRELs
(note (j) i) 96 338 5 439 - 439
Mr. Jiang Lei L2 e 823 263 5 1,091 - 1,091
Mr. Fan Yajun BRELE 96 - - 96 239 335
Mr. Gan Yi (note (i) HBEE (Hri) 96 56 18 170 9% 266
Independent BAFRTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Lai Wing Lee KR 48 - - 48 48 96
Mr. Leung Shu Sun,  2Hif#f%s
Sunny 173 - - 173 48 221
Professor Wang TEDHR
Guozhen 43 - - 48 48 9%
1,380 657 28 2,065 479 2,544
Notes: Bzt -
()  Mr. Jiang Quanlong is the chief executive of the Company. (i) BRELER/RARNAIRSITRAR °
(i) Mr. Gan Yi resigned as executive director with effect from 7 (i) HREEB-Z—NFRALHE
May 2014. BHEITES -

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the directors of the
Company held share options under the Company’s share
option scheme. Details of which are disclosed in note 31.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
no directors received any emoluments from the Group
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. No directors has waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during both years.

RZE—NMFEFR-_T—=F+=A
=t+—H ARAEZFREAAR
BRESFAERE - EEBEKR
REFFIBE A HIFEST ©

BE_T WMER-F—=F1+=
A=+—RLEFE BEEFCAH
7 8% [ s R A ] B < 1 79 4R 62 A0 A
BNV U o e nheid i3 e
B REENZMEFERE
HRABRETAME -

91



Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited ¢ jZ R R{REBHR A T

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2013: three) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining three (2013: two)
individuals are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e o FRRHEAM
other benefits Mz

Contributions to defined contribution TE R FURIKET &
retirement plans HIR

Equity-settled share-based AR 45 B AR 19 T K
payments

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during both years.

The emoluments of the above three (2013: two) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following

bands:

Bands: #H7 :

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 702

2,000,000/ 7T
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EEMeAL

A EEME AL @ EME (ST —
=% =) ARAEE - AMWEH
BHAHES - BF=f (T =
i) AT ZBE T

2014 2013
—F—mF =5
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

1,921 1,685
27 24

- 709
1,948 2,318

HE_Z-—NOMFER-_T—=F+=
A=+—RHLEE AEEHER
AU #E A+ sk BT
B <2 1 & 5 /R 18 4F 7 2 1 o0 A sk R
INAREERF 2 525 kB 2 B (E o

b= (ZF—=F: ML) &=
e AL ZBMeARmT

2014 2013
—F—mF —E-=F
2 1

1 1

3 2




Annual Report 2014 « — = —[UF F 3R

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

10. PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO 10. ZAFHBAEERT (5
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY iR)
The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to owners KRABBEEAEBEEAERN (B
of the Company includes a loss of approximately B) BREEEH ARE10,333,000
RMB10,333,000 (2013: RMB12,593,000) which has been T(Z & — =Z F: AR K
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. 12,593,0007T) © BEFEARR A Z B 7%
WERPEE -

11. DIVIDENDS 11. BR2
2014 2013
—Z—@mE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Proposed final dividend of HK2 cents EEARE S E B

(2013: Nil) per ordinary share 2B (ZB—=5F : &) 13,447 -
The final dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share for the AAREFERBE_ZT—WF+
year ended 31 December 2014 has been recommended A=+t RUEFERBRESR
by the directors of the Company and is subject to LTEROBI - EEFARARER
approval by the shareholders of the Company in the FEE AR B F Re EHEAE o
forthcoming annual general meeting.

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12. SREF (K@)
a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share a) BRELRERN (FHE)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is BREXRRF (BB HE
based on the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the RAAREE ABESEF
Company of approximately RMB28,357,000 (2013: (B518) 4 A R #28,357,000
loss of RMB21,098,000) and the weighted average T(ZE—=F: BEARK
number of 817,863,014 ordinary shares (2013: 21,098,0007T) MEFEAE #ETT
800,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year. 817,863,014% & i I (_ =

— = % : 800,000,000/ & &
) Z A EEE -

b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share b) SR#BEERAN (EE)
() Year ended 31 December 2014 0 BE-ZE-HFEL+=H

=E+—HULFE

The calculation of diluted earnings per share HE-_ZF—WF+=_A8

for the year ended 31 December 2014 is based —t+—HILFEEGKRE

on the profit attributable to owners of the AR TR A ER AR A

Company of approximately RMB28,357,000 ERERTEIIE T B L

and the weighted average number of ordinary ELRRNTER R

shares after adjusting the effect of dilutive BARRESR AEL G

potential ordinary shares under the Company’s A #4 A R #28,357,000

share option scheme. 7T & AR 2 hnAE 1T
HETHE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE

—THEFE+_A=t+—HIFE

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

94

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (Continued)

(ii)

The calculation of weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share is as follows:

12. SREBH (BR) (]
b) BREEEF (BE) (&)
METEEBREFERNM
B R E B N 15 B
Eﬁ.ﬁr LHIT

Number of shares

B8 B
Weighted average number of ordinary METEFRERBRMS
shares for the purpose of calculating Y 3 38 PR DN RE S 15 8
basic earnings per share 817,863,014
Add: Effect of dilutive potential ordinary o REAREREEEE
shares from share options TR 18,130,204
Weighted average number of ordinary HETEEREERTME
shares for the purpose of calculating R 58 B N4 19 S
diluted earnings per share 835,993,218

Year ended 31 December 2013

Diluted loss per share was the same as
the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2013 as the share options
outstanding had no dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share for that year.

) BE-E—=F1+=A4
=t—HILFE

o A 8% 4 R 77 £ B AR
15 R 3 A 9 3
BEYE SRBE=
T-=F+-A=+—
A 1L 4 5 IR 5 8
REREAFEIAR °
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13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Carrying amount: REE :
At beginning of the year F)
Additions during the year FARE
Amortisation for the year FAEEH
At end of the year FR
Analysed by: DT :
Non-current portion JERNERER1D
Current portion BERER (D
Total #st

The prepaid lease payments represent prepayments
of lease premium for lands situated in the PRC under
medium-term leases. The amortisation charge for the
year is included in “general and administrative expenses”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
acquired a leasehold land from a related party (see note
34(a)). The Group is in the process of obtaining the
land use right certificate. As at 31 December 2014, the
carrying amount of the aforesaid land was approximately
RMB13,905,000 (2013: RMB14,200,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

13. RftHARER

The Group

AEE
2014 2013
—Z=—ms$ —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
55,729 42,250
- 14,434
(1,195) (955)
54,534 55,729
53,339 54,551
1,195 1,178
54,534 55,729

BNAEFREREH BEE EF
XN ZERFEzANLHMES -
AERBHBERFTAGRBERE LA
feEmBERZ [—RETHAX]
A o

REBEE-—Z—=F+=-A=+—H
tFE AEBE—RBEEALRE
A— B E L i (R W #E34@)) °
ANEEFRERG+ #fF BB G
Bh -R-Z—NFEF+-_A=1+—
B FllEtHAEAFEANAR
#413,905,000c (Z T —=F : A
R #14,200,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BEREE

The Group
350
Furniture,
fixturesand  Leasehold Plant and Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment improvements  machineries vehicles Molding  in progress Total
. BH-okE HENR
Ritf kE  BERES Al &a HRIE
RMBOWO  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RWBOOD  RVBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBIOQO
ARETT  ARETR ARETr ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETR ARET:
Cost: %38
As at 1 January 2013 WZE—=%—-f—H 118,023 2,665 13,725 119,932 8,510 7,618 99,502 369,965
Additions NE 1,943 212 - 1,769 3,489 4,806 64,722 76,941
Transfers 25 - - - 1,717 - - (17 -
Disposals e - - - (179) (2429) - - (2,595)
Exchange adjustments i3 - 1) U - @) - - (22)
As at 31 December 2013 W-2-=%#+-f=1-R
and 1 January 2014 k-Z-mE-B—H 119,966 2,860 13,718 123,305 9,569 12,424 162,447 444289
Additions NE 36,434 798 9,103 17,939 - 2,436 47,703 114,413
Transfers g 34,222 - 493 48,109 - - (82,824) -
Disposals e - - - - (237) - - (287)
Wiite-off s - - s - (121) - 5 (127)
Bxchange adjustments ERAZ - 4 4 - 9 - - 17
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-RETZA=1-A 190,622 3,662 23,318 189,353 9,214 14,860 127,326 558,355
Accumulated depreciation:  REHE :
As at 1 January 2013 R=F-=5-f-H 17,662 2,018 2,293 26,031 6,084 6,337 = 59,425
Charge for the year REEHY 5,372 179 9 10,240 25 4,042 - 20,567
Written back on disposals HERRD - - - (156) (1,858) - - (2,014)
Exchange adustments B AR = U 7 - - - = {14)
As at 31 December 2013 RZE-—=%+-A=+-H
and 1 January 2014 k=Z-mE-f-H 28,034 2,190 2,29 35,115 4,951 10,379 77,964
Charge for the year REEHR 7,540 221 508 15,526 1,126 3,998 - 28,919
Written back on disposals HEHRD - - - - (113) - - (119)
Eliminated on write-off MR R - - - - (114) - - (114)
Exchange adjustments A% - 4 4 - 1 - - 9
As at 31 December 2014 RZT-ME+-fA=1-R 30,574 2,415 2,807 50,641 5,851 14377 - 106,665
Carrying amounts: I :
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-WF+-A=1-H 160,048 1,247 20,511 138,712 3,363 483 127,326 451,690
As at 31 December 2013 WZE-=%+-f=1-H 96,932 670 11,423 88,190 4618 2,045 162,447 366,325
Notes: et -

a) As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s building with carrying
amount of approximately RMB724,000 (2013: RMB763,000)
was pledged to a bank to secure a bank loan granted to a
subsidiary of the Company (see note 23).

b) Inventories of approximately RMB543,000 (2014: Nil) were
transferred as an addition of property, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

c) All the buildings are situated in the PRC and are situated on
land held under medium-term leases.
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a) MR-E—NF+-_A=+—HEE
BEAHEHARET24,000T (= F
— =% : AR¥763,0007T) 2 A
EEEFOHMBARERETAR
Al—RENB AR ZRITER (R
£+23) °

b) MREBEE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—H
LEFEFE L ARES43,0007T (=
T—UF ;) EEEEISYE
B MRt o

o FERFTHRPERANRESH

HEGFRFE 2L L -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERER (&)
(Continued)
The Company
F47
Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment  improvements Motor
. HE vehicles Total
RER®ME nERE RE -]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT AREFT AREFT
Cost: BE:
As at 1 January 2013 RIT—=%
—HA—8 239 244 - 483
Additions NE - - 559 559
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A% (7) (7) (8) (22)
As at 31 December 2013 and R-Z—=%+-8
1 January 2014 =+-BR-ZT-INF
—HF—H 232 237 551 1,020
Additions NE 14 - - 14
Exchange adjustments [ 5 2 4 4 9 17
As at 31 December 2014 RZT—NF
+-A=+—H 250 241 560 1,051
Accumulated depreciation: RHinE :
As at 1 January 2013 RZE—=%F
—A—H 219 237 - 456
Charge for the year AEERE 15 7 19 41
Exchange adjustments R (7) (7) - (14)
As at 31 December 2013 and R-Z—=F+-A
1 January 2014 =t—BR-F-—HF
—A—H 227 237 19 483
Charge for the year AEERE 7 - 111 118
Exchange adjustments [E 5 AR 4 4 1 9
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z—NE
+ZA=1—H 238 241 131 610
Carrying amounts: IREME :
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z—NE
+-A=+—~H 12 - 429 441
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+-A=+—~H ® - 532 537
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE

—THEFE+_A=t+—HIFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

16.

98

15. AHHHERMEE

Unlisted equity investment BRANETE 2 A
in the PRC, at cost FEEMRAIZE

The carrying amount of the above unlisted equity
investment represents 5% equity interest in a private entity
established in the PRC. The unlisted equity investment,
which is not held for short-term trading, was carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses as the
investment does not have a quoted price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant. As at 31 December 2014, the Group does not
intend to dispose of the investment in the near future.

The Group
*KHE
2014 2013
—ZE—@lE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETTT
9,000 9,000

Eai 3 ERBRARE 2 FREE/E
REIRKIL Z A BB 2 5% HE © I
FREHPEEMREA I LR
1A BRI R BB T 5 PR E AR K
HAFETER G E (R
NFEGFHEETDRZ) - BURK
A BEHREBEIIR R =_F—
ME+—_A=+—H AKELT
BN TABRHEZIKE -

PREPAYMENTS FOR CONSULTATION, 16. M TBERREERY
MARKETING AND PROMOTIONAL b ANE A
SERVICES
(@) Movements of prepayments for consultation, (@) FAHENA THERREGR
marketing and promotional services during the BRGREBHMOTF :
year are as follows:
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—Z—mE —=—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREET T
As at 1 January Rn—HA—H - -
Additions NE 230,500 -
Utilised and charged to profit or loss B 81/ ket Atz (14,000) -
As at 31 December n+=—A=+—H 216,500 -
Analysed for reporting purposes B2 HT -
as follows:
Non-current portion ERENE 130,000 =
Current portion (included in trade mEE D (GTARKE S
and other receivables (Note 19)) REMFRIE (FFE19)) 86,500 =
Total X 216,500 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

16. PREPAYMENTS FOR CONSULTATION, 16. M  TIHEERESRE
MARKETING AND PROMOTIONAL AT (&)
SERVICES (Continued)

(b) The analysis of the carrying amount of (b) WETABRHEN HRHERE
prepayments for consultation, marketing and REFRBRAMRZERES
promotional services which will be charged to WU :

profit or loss is as follows:

The Group
EE

2014 2013
—Z=—ms$ —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T

Within 1 year —FR 86,500 -
After 1 year but less than 2 years —FRERMEA 32,500 =
After 2 years but less than 5 years MEREBEALERN 97,500 =

Prepayments for consultation, marketing and
promotional services represent the prepayments
made by the Group to several independent
architectural research and design institutes and
universities in the PRC (the “Parties”) for providing
consultation services to set up and establish industry
standards and national criteria with respect to
applications of wood wool cement board (“WWCB”)
related materials on different aspects, and for
providing marketing and promotional services to the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Group entered into several agreements (the
“Agreements”) with the Parties for the purpose of (i)
providing consultation services to the Group so as to
set up and establish industry standards and national
criteria for applications of WWCB related materials in
the PRC and (ii) rendering marketing and promotional
services to the Group for enhancing the development
of the Group’s WWCB related materials and market
penetration in the PRC during the years from 2015
to 2019. The total consideration of the Agreements
is RMB266,000,000 of which RMB230,500,000
was paid by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2014. Pursuant to the Agreements, the
Group has reserved the rights to recall part of or all
of the prepayments already made to the Parties if the
Parties cannot fulfill the conditions as stated in the
Agreements.

216,500 =

A MGHEEREEREE
MREAEE R F AL EEHE
BRARAREBNIR ([ RERIKT
1) HEEER TR E 2 fE
IEPSECEIOE LR =R
YR AR TS - LA KT 5 1 B
B E RS MR EZ B2
SERFT M TR RS ([F]
#77]) fEH AT AR -

REBEZE-_ZE—NWF+_-_A=
+—BILEFE AEBHE
#9755 Fh()VRA R B A R 44 KR IR
ERER 2 A KRBT
ZE K B 2R 2%E Al i [R) AN 52 B 42 i
BARE - RN ZE—RE
EE-NFEFHARHER
&£ BRI IR #8 B8 Y L B B
B RWi52ERMmAAEE R
HMEHEERSERS 3]
VETHwE((ZEH&E]) -
ZEMBNBAREAARK
266,000,0007T * E & AR
230,500,000t E B A K E R
BHE-_ZT-—NF+_-_A=+—
BEFEXN - REZZEH
2 WET A REEMEZER
EPTAURME - AR BRE W E
BRGNS AR EE
T AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

16. PREPAYMENTS FOR CONSULTATION,
MARKETING AND PROMOTIONAL
SERVICES (Continued)

(b)

The analysis of the carrying amount of
prepayments for consultation, marketing and
promotional services which will be charged to
profit or loss is as follows: (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, part of
the consultation services with aggregate amount
of RMB14,000,000 (2013: Nil) were rendered by
the Parties and the amounts were recognised
as “research and development expenses” in
profit or loss during the year. For the marketing
and promotional services to be rendered by the
Parties, the related expenses will be released from
“prepayments for consultation, marketing and
promotional services” and will be recognised as
“marketing and promotional expenses” in profit or
loss once the services have been rendered.

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

100

Unlisted shares or capital contributions in
subsidiaries, at cost

WA E ZIE LM
BADL-=PNCIPA-¥NESA

16. &5 - TIRERR EFRY
Rt RIR (#]&)

(b)

R ARSHEN  THER
REBBRERAMRZBEES
W : (&)

REBEEZZT—NF+=A=+
—HIEFE BEAARK
14,000,0007T (=T — =4 :
) NBHBARBEHETL
Fieft  MzeBEEFAR
BaERE [THERSZ] - 35T
W EESRENTSHEERE
BERBME @ &RFDIERM
% EERZHEE[FR ™
SRR S ERBENSK]
Br - WRBzmF R[5 HE
REBRXT ] #R -

17. RRBATIZ®’E

The Company

F4F
2014 2013
—Z—mF —E—=f
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
526,953 518,437
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

17. RIBARIZ&RE (W)

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

2014 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Pan Asia Environmental
Protection Technologies
Limited

Dragon Commend Limited

Wuxi Pan Asia
Environmental Protection
Technologies Limited
(“Wuxi Pan Asia”) (note i)

&7 DRREHL
ARAA ([EHZE])
(hati)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and type of
legal entity
B/
BRI MR
HERENE

British Virgin
Islands, limited
liability company

EERTHS
AR

British Virgin
Islands, limited
liability company

HBRLES
BRAT

The PRC,
jointly-

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
ERTR
BREE
ElEx

US$200/
Ordinary Share
200ET/
Tiak

USs$1/
Ordinary Share
1%,/

LAk

US$54,280,000/
Registered Capital

foreign-owned  54,280,000%7T,/

enterprise
HE - S

RELR

R

Proportion of ownership interest

RZZE-—NFE+_HA=+—H ' K
NEZHBRRFENT -

BERELE
The

Group’s Held Held
effective by the by a
interest Company subsidiary
b3 | ;.3 S
ERESR 2FRFF L05EF
100% 100% =
100% 100% -
100% 58.95% 41.05%

Principal activities
and place of
operations
FERBR
ETHE

Investment holding/
Hong Kong
REBRKR /EE

Not yet commence

business
TREE

Manufacture and
sales of EP
products and
equipment,
undertakes
EP construction
engineering
projects and
manufacture of
EP construction
materials/
the PRC

RREMREEBZ
BUERGHE AR
RREZIRE
BB RBERR
BEME/ HE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RBARZRE (])

(Continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEELS
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment share capital/ The
and type of registered Group’s Held Held  Principal activities
legal entity capital effective by the bya and place of
HEMEL B®{TR interest Company subsidiary operations
Name of subsidiary RIBER BERE  F£E mE miE IEXEBR
MEATRE EREENE Mk  ERES LOFRE LNFRE EERE
Pan Asia Environmental The PRC, HK$100,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacture and
Protection (China) wholly- Registered Capital sales of EP
Company Limited (note i) foreign-owned 100,000,000,/ products and
RERR (FE) BRATF enterprise A A equipment and
(Hizti) HE - AN undertakes EP
BELE construction
engineering
projects/
the PRC
RIREmRRELZ
B RS E Rk
BRERLE
BR /P E
Wuxi Zhong Dian Kong The PRC, RMB5,000,000/ 100% = 100%  Investment holding/
Leng Technology Limited domestic- Registered Capital the PRC
(note i) invested limited ARE REER /&
EHTRE LB liability company ~ 5,000,0007% /
BRAR (Hiti) hE - BRRE s AR AR
BRAT
BEBERODREARATA The PRC, RMB10,000,000/  100% - 100%  Undertakes
domestic- Registered Capital EP construction
invested limited AR engineering
liability company ~ 10,000,0007C / projects/
hE - FARE AR AR the PRC
ARRA RERRER
I®REE /&
Shanghai Environmental The PRC, RMB10,750,000/  70.05% - 70.056%  Provision of
Engineering Design & joint stock Registered Capital professional services,
Research Institute limited company AR manufacture and
Limited (“SEEDRI") (note )~ HEl » f&fp 10,750,0007T / sales of EP
EBRE TR ER BRAH A products and
BB AR equipment
((RBIEM%ER]) and undertakes
(Hzi) EP construction

102
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

17. RIBARIZ&RE (W)

Proportion of ownership interest

WAL
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment share capital/ The
and type of registered Group’s Held Held Principal activities
legal entity capital effective by the bya and place of
HML, BH{TR interest Company subsidiary operations
Name of subsidiary I MER BERE/ F£@ ik 3 BHE FEEER
MELARRE HREENE Hiilkd EREE O/FRF LFEF BERE
BEEZ IR T2 The PRC, RMB10,000,000/  49.04% - 70%  Manufacture and
BERAR joint stock Registered Capital sales of EP
([EE7E]) limited company AR products and
HE - R 10,000,0007C / equipment
BRAH AR AR and undertakes

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or within any time during the year.

Notes:

(i): The English names for these companies which were
established in the PRC are not officially registered but
included here as a translation for identification purpose.

(i):  The Group had no subsidiaries which have material non-
controlling interests during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013.

EP construction
engineering
projects
and provision of
professional
services/
the PRC

IRIREE R
ZBUERHE R
RERRESTE
HE - R
%/

B B A R R AF A
BREANEEAEEESRTE -

(i) :

(i) -

P BIRK AL 2 X ) 2 B AT 3F
EXEMEL 2B - RREFPT
R AW REEMS - (L35
ZH e

HE_ZT—HNFER-_FT—=F1+=

H=1+—BLFE » AEBELEMH
[BRBEREAI R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE

18.

19.

104

—THEFE+_A=t+—HIFE

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

R
R
SR

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables (Notes a to c¢)

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Other receivables (Note e)
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Retention receivables (Note d)

Amount due from a related
company (Note 20)

Amounts due from subsidiaries
(Note f)

Loans and receivables
Prepayments for consultation,
marketing and promotional
services (Note 16)
Prepayments and deposits
Other tax recoverables
Amounts due from customers
for contract work (Note 26)

FEWE 5B
(Bfitazc)
W RERE

Hi YA (Hrite)
B RERE R

FEUE R E
(Biitd)

JEUW — BB E A AR
R (B13t20)

JRE W Bt /BB 2 R UIE
(Bfatr)

RN AR

i MIBHENM
SERGEMK
(B1:£16)

BEfRFERES

H A EFH &

RUREFAHTRE
HIE (H1i#26)

18. &
The Group
*THRHE
2014 2013
—Z—@mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTIT
2,781 4,411
113,467 64,991
128,022 27,963
244,270 97,365

19. Bl R S REMKRIT

The Group The Company
F5H b /N

2014 2013 2014 2013
Z|mE | —T—=-F | ZB—MFE | —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARKETT | ARRTRE | ARET
158,651 127,609 - =
(27,226) (3,443) - -
131,425 124,166 - -
46,036 55,700 78 79
(1,042) (1,385) - -
44,994 54,315 78 79
51,826 61,915 - -
16 820 - -
- - 250,708 246,631
228,261 241,216 250,786 246,710
86,500 - - -
139,727 62,322 679 396
36,871 12,152 - -
15,325 99,878 - -
506,684 415,568 251,465 247,106
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s
prepayments and deposits expected to be recovered
or recognised as expense after more than one year is
approximately RMB280,000 (2013: RMB388,000). All
of the trade and other receivables, apart from those
mentioned in note (d) below are expected to be recovered
or recognised as expense within one year.

a) Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of

allowance for doubtful debts) at the end of each
reporting period is as follow:

0 - 30 days 0ZE30K

31 - 60 days 31E60X
61 — 90 days 61290K
91 - 180 days 91E 180K
181 — 365 days 1812365k
Over 365 days 365K A

The Group normally grants credit term up to 2
months to its customers. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy are set out in note 38(b)(i).

19.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

BRRARAEMKRIEA ()

AEBEAAREHBER —FElk
Bl ER AT 2 BN KRB RIZS
4 B AN R #280,0007T (=& — =
£ AR#388,0007T) ° K& 3K

AE(d) ATt & S

FrERKE S KA

b R I8 TR B — 4 (A Uk 0 X R AR S
FisC °

a)

SRR DA

FENE 5B RARRAE -
MR B HREHR2NZREK D

e
The Group
AEE

2014 2013
—Z=—msE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETTT
9,064 32,183
272 4,626
3,187 1,354
65,466 38,117
19,387 23,575
34,049 24,311
131,425 124,166

AEEBFENEPRTRS
2EAZEEER AREREE
B ZHE—FHBEHNKE
38(b)(i) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19.

(Continued)
b) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables directly (see note 2(g)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

As at 1 January n—HR—H
Impairment loss recognised BHERBEEE
Reversal of impairment loss BB BR[O

As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables
of approximately RMB27,226,000 (2013:
RMB3,443,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. These individually impaired receivables
were outstanding for over 180 days as at the end of
the reporting period or were due from debtors with
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

106

BRRARAEMKRIEA ()

b)

PE WS B 5 FRIE 2 R B

B E SR ZBEEBERTIRN
REERTER - BRIEAKEAE
EH Bz SRR A ERE -
AZREBREERREKE
S BET M (RHE2(g) °

FARGBREEDY (BEFE
RERERID) O

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-mE| - =F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

3,443 2,104
23,944 1,370
(161) (381)
27,226 3,443

RZE—NWNF+_A=+—
H BURIZSHREBHOARE
27,226,000 (=T — = :
A R #3,443,0007T) © 1@ Bl
EBTARE - Z5@EFREZ
JE s 3R IE A 3R 25 HA R i HA R 0B
180H * kAT KR E# 2
BEARN - REBEZELE
BRI T A AR



Annual Report 2014 ¢ == — [JF F 3§

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 R AR B

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

c)

d)

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired R R IR ARORUE
Less than 1 month past due wHD P E A
1 to 3 months past due wHEA1 =31E A
More than 3 months past due 160 B A 1A 3 1E A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Retention receivables

Retention receivables (typically 5% to 20% of the
total contracted value) are amounts which are not
paid by the customers until fulfilment of warranty
period of generally 1 to 2 years specified in the
contracts for the payment of such amounts. The
amount of retentions are expected to be recovered
through its normal operating cycle.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

19. BERR SR EMBRIT (&)

c)

d)

RBE 2 W E 5 5 IE

3 7B 51 s 3£ 748 LB B
W SHIE Y BRI -

The Group
AEE

2014 2013
—Z=—ms$ —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
9,336 36,809
3,187 1,354
65,466 38,117
53,436 47,886
131,425 124,166

BER 8 A I R ORL (B 2 FE U SR IR
% 2T PEIERIER TR
EFER -

BB A RRE 2 BUFOR R
SEBAEAEEBERFER
RSk BUEFBRE - ERB
TR AR EEERTES

e B EHRBINRR A
2O WERERERA
A RSRBELBERE - &
SEYEFERFHRBZEIM
i e

PE W E R R IE

FEW B RRIBIE R M AT
ZEBE(—RBAENREEZ
5%ZE20%) * BERERKNLE
TEHTHZERE (—RE
—ZEWF) %A TN - FEH
ZERFEARE—REER
HARAT T Uk -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

108

e)

f)

Other receivables

Included in other receivables as at 31 December 2014
is an advance of approximately RMB17,230,000 (2013:
RMB17,230,000) to the local government departments
of Guannan County, Lianyungang City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. The management believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
this balance as the balance is still considered fully
recoverable.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

As at 1 January Rn—H—H
Impairment loss recognised EERBEBRE
Reversal of impairment loss BEEEED

As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H

At at 31 December 2014, other receivables of
approximately RMB1,042,000 (2013: RMB1,385,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. These
individually impaired receivables were outstanding for
over one year as at the end of the reporting period
or were due from debtors with financial difficulties.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
palances.

Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

e)

f)

19. BERR SR EMBRIT (&)

H fth P& W 5K 1R

HMERFEBEER S —
WE+—A=+—BEfFFF
BTt A EZEMERZE
HAT EBPY 2 RIB X A R
17,230,0007T (=& — = :
A K #17,230,0007T) ° & 32
EBiEE  ARZERBINHER
Br2EIE - EREEEAE
AR -

FAZAREBRBESY (BRK
ENEEEENY) AT

The Group
*THRHE
2014 2013
—Z—mE —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
1,385 186
- 1,199
(343) -
1,042 1,385

R-ZE—WNFEF+=-A=1+—
H EfEKREBHOARKE
1,042,0007T (ZZE—=%F : A
K#1,385,0007T) EBIEE &
BERE - RBEHER - 25 [
IDEREY A€ ST B Eh b
—FERE M ERENES
A AEBUVERZEEHE
EEE RS o

FE Y B R 2 R KR

P& Ui B I8 B IR A AR A
% B NMARERENEER -
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20. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED

COMPANY

Name of
related party
BEALEEB

TEEREABRTEREARAA

Relationship with
the Group
BESEBRE

A company of which
Mr. Jiang Lei,
a director of the
Company, is also
a legal representative
ARAIEZERZLETD
BEEAERKZAA

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

20. B —RHRELAFHREA

2014
—2—mF
RMB’000
ARBTR

16

The Group
FE@E
Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year ended
31 December
BE+_"A=1+—HLEE

AEEREEN
2013 2014 2013
“ECF | Z8-0F | —T-=F
RMB'000 | RMB’000 | RMB’000
ARBTE | AR®TRE | ARETT
820 820 820

The amount due from a related company is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

fE U — I BE A R A SRIE A &K
- B RBRERAEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

RE-F-MET-A=+-ALEE

21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

21.

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. As at 31 December 2014, the bank
balances and deposits carried interests at the prevailing
market interest rate which ranged from 0% to 0.39%

(2013: 0% to 0.35%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank balances
and cash that were either not freely convertible
or were subject to exchange controls in the PRC,
amounting to approximately RMB374,597,000 (20183:

RMB567,623,000).

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
(Note a)

Accruals and other payables
(Note b)

Amount due to a director
(Note 24)

Amount due to a subsidiary
(Note c)

Amounts due to related
companies (Note 25)

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost

Other PRC tax payables

110

ENESHRE
(Kiita)
FERTE A R E A
518 (Hazb)
N EERIE
(Btit24)
JES — B A R
KIE (ffatc)
FERTBRE D RIFUA
(K17E25)

PABESHAX AT E R
TREE

H b e o BIFE IR

Bl&RkRITRER

REeERBRITHEHBEASEEFEZ
BekREHNHEAE=ZMBHASAT
ZRHEBITER  RZE—WF+
—A=t+—8 ROBEBRERIE
WITMHFEMNENFEE0.39% (=
T—=F : THE0.35%):1 8 °

N-E—NE+_A=+—H " &
SEFAETERTRAERALBRIF
INEEH T EZRTERRE S
B ANR¥374,597,000T (—E—=
& AR¥567,623,0007T) °

22. ERSARAEMKIE

The Group The Company

F5£E . 3/
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-mF | —T=F | ZB—QF | —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 | RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | ARB T | A\ABBTR | ARETTT
114,060 117,984 - —
51,454 34,702 1,812 1,154
- 556 - 11
- - 19,285 62,286
6,628 17,928 - -
172,142 171,170 21,097 63,451
4,653 4,815 - -
176,795 175,985 21,097 63,451
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 22. B SR EMKIE (iF)

a) Ageing analysis of trade payables a) ENESZREZEREIN
The ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of REMERRENE S KB Z
each reporting period is as follows: BRERDITAAT ¢
The Group
FHRE
2014 2013
ot 3 —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARETTT
0 - 30 days 0E30K 14,953 19,556
31 - 60 days 31E60X 2,779 2,249
61 — 90 days 61290K 1,017 11,370
91 - 180 days 91E 180K 3,140 1,653
181 — 365 days 181%E365K 2,970 17,396
Over 365 days 365K A 89,201 65,760
114,060 117,984
b) Accruals and other payables b) EFERARHEMENKIE
Included in other payables of the Group as REEEMENRERERZ
at 31 December 2014 is an amount due to a E-NFE+-_A=+—HEN
former subsidiary amounting to approximately TRIMB AR ZHKEHARKE
RMB8,784,000 (2013: RMB8,784,000). The amount 8,784,0007T (ZZF—=4F : A
due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on R #8,784,0007T) ° #Z%FKIETY
demand. mIER - R ERERE KA
B o
c) Amount due to a subsidiary c) ENA-—HEHELRRE
The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, FE A~ —FEI B BB & R R IE T R 3K
interest-free and repayable on demand. 2B RARERANKE
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

23. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2014, the bank loans were repayable
as follow:

Current liabilities
Within 1 year or on demand

Sit
b
fir

\]
/!

N S
(I

As at 31 December 2014, the bank loans were secured as

follow:

Bank loans MITER
- secured — B
— unsecured — 3

A bank loan of RMB9,000,000 (2013: RMB9,000,000) is
denominated in RMB with interest at a rate of the People’s
Bank of China RMB Loan Interest Rate plus 30% of
that rate. The effective interest rate ranged from 6% to
7.8% (2013: 6.00% to 7.80%) per annum. The remaining
bank loan of RMB5,000,000 (2013: RMB5,000,000) is
denominated in RMB with interest at a rate of the People’s
Bank of China RMB Loan Interest Rate plus 20% of that
rate. The effective interest rate ranged from 5% to 6%
(2013: fixed rate of 5.6%) per annum.

112

23.

BRBRITER

R-_E—NFE+=—A=+—A0 &
EBRZIBITEFWMAT :

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—Z—mE —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
& 14,000 14,000

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H0" B2

BERZRITERDOT :
The Group
*xEH
2014 2013
—=—MmF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®TRT AR¥BTTT
9,000 9,000
5,000 5,000
14,000 14,000

R1TE R AR ¥9,000,0007T (=F
— =4F : 9,000,0007T) A A R¥EEt
B AEXAEFEARBKRTAREE
AR INEZ F EBI30% B B F F
RN F6RET8% (Z T — = F:
6.00%Z£7.80%) ° #2 NIRTTE XA
R #5,000,0007T (ZZE—=%F : A
R #5,000,00070) A A REEHE -
FEERBEARRITAREEZF
R ANFZF R E20% o BB E R RN
F5%%6% (—T— =4 : EEMR
5.6%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

23. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS (Continued) 23. JAMASRITHR ()
As at 31 December 2014, the bank loan of RMB9,000,000 RZZE-—WF+_A=+—H &
(2013: RMB9,000,000) is secured by the Group’s building £ 82 AR#9,000,0007T (ZF—
with carrying amount of approximately RMB724,000 (2013: =4 : AR¥09,000,0005t) RITE
RMB763,000) (see note 14(a)). The pledged building will RIOAAEBEREmFELRHARK
be released upon full settlement of the relevant bank loan. 724,000t (ZZE—=F: AR
763,0007T) (RHiFE14(a)) ZEFIE
RER BEEREFHERNEART

BEEMNERBRER -
All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the REBEMBRITHMES X LHBHE
fulfilment of covenants. If the Group were to breach the R MASEEZERZEH EBAZ
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become EERHAREREERE AEETEH
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its ERERETRELH - BEEASE
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the EEERBERR  #E— LB
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note A I FE38(b)(iii) e R =—ZF—NF K
38(b)(iii). As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, none of —T—=F+ZA=+—H K&
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been EwmERBHESREEE CHH -

breached by the Group.
24. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 24. BRI EERIE
The Group The Company
F5E F27

2014 2013 2014 2013
ZZ-—MmE | —T-F | ZB—MFE | —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARKETT | ARRTRE | ARET
Mr. Jiang Lei BERTE - 556 - 11

The amount due to a director was unsecured, interest-free
and repaid in full during the year ended 31 December 2014.

ENEEFRDEER 2 RD
REBE-_T-—HOF+-_A=+—~H
IEEE2HEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 25. EFRRELTRIEA

Name of related party Relationship with the Group The Group
AEALTEE HAKHERE F5H
2014 2013
—Z—mFE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE AREFT

Yixing Silver Mile Fluorescent A company of which

Materials Co., Ltd Mr. Jiang Quanlong,

(*Yixing Silver Mile”) a director of the
HERXEAMEERA Company, is also a

(TEHERX]) director of its shareholder

ARAEEBRELE
MREBRRZEEZ AT 4,443 14,443

Benxi Fanya Environmental Heat & A company of which

Power Co., Ltd. Mr. Fan Yajun, a director of
FEZGBRRERBR AT the Company, is

also a director and one of

the ultimate beneficiaries
ARAREEBRELRE

ﬁ%i%&ﬁ¢1

R BALZR
A company of WhICh

Mr. Jiang Quanlong, a

director of the Company, is

also one of the ultimate beneficiaries

AREERE, aEfEEJ’U%

Hh—fURERBEAZR 2,185 3,485

6,628 17,928

The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, JE < B 3= HRIETEER - 28
interest-free and repayable on demand. NERE T ﬂﬁﬁaw\ °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR 26. EREFRAVIERE
CONTRACT WORK
Details of construction contracts in progress at the end of =y Eiﬁﬂif{%ﬁz&%lﬁ )
each reporting period are as follow: ROl
The Group
.3
2014 2013
—E—@lE —T—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETTT
Contract costs incurred to date S FIEE 2B HIKA 279,133 275,901
Recognised profits less recognised losses EEE Rt AR B R & 1E 46,765 46,570
325,898 322,471
Less: Progress billings B EERIA (310,573) (222,593)
Amounts due from customers JEW R P& % TIEFKIE
for contract work 15,325 99,878
As at 31 December 2014, the amounts due from RZE—NE+=ZA=+—8H " &
customers for contract work are expected to be recovered HR—FAREREKER &L ITE
within one year. SKIE °
Receipts in advance from customers for contract work RZE—NE+=ZA=+—8" &
amounting to approximately RMB29,309,000 as at 31 WEFPEHNIREREOAARE
December 2014 (2013: RMB29,169,000) were included in 29,309,000 (ZZE—=%F: AK
“Deposits received and receipts in advance”. #29,169, OOOTE) Wat A [BEWiZE
&%ﬁi”ﬁz/ﬂ\
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27. REMEBRARAZFREFR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of a) HEMBRRKRAZANHABEE
financial position represents

The Group
x5KMH
2014 2013
—E—HlE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
Provision for PRC Enterprise FE AR TSR EE

Income Tax for the year 19,667 1,718

Provisional tax paid during the year 4 Al 2 < & & 1 18 (30,263) (335)
(10,596) 1,378
Balance of PRC Enterprise HBTEFEREBL

Income Tax relating to prior year — FREI{>ZEFRSF 4584

(net of tax paid of approximately (¥R 2N FHIBEL A REE

RMB1,906,000 1,906,0007T (= Z—=4 :

(2013: RMB7,083,000)) AR#7,083,0007T)) 1,483 2,011
Net tax (recoverable)/payable (AT, e FRIBF 5 (9,113) 3,389
Tax payable T3 10,888 3,389
Tax recoverable AR B A IR (20,001) -
Net tax (recoverable)/payable (ATYeE) /e R IE R 58 (9,113) 3,389
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27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

b) Deferred taxation
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised

in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the movements during the year are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014

RE-F-—ME+-A=+—AILEE

27. FEMBRARAZHRER
(#])

b) EZEHIE

FARGEMBRNKERZ
EETA A B2 ARy M
B -

The Group
F5EE
Depreciation
Withholding allowances
tax on in excess
undistributed of related
profits depreciation Total
KA RBT BHHERAEZ
ZRMR it #it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARET T ARET T
As at 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—H—H 7,671 5,601 13,272
Charged to profit or loss st A8z (#7726(a)
(Note 6(a)) 823 835 1,658
As at 31 December 2013 R T—=4
and 1 January 2014 +-A=+—-HX
—T—mE—/[—H 8,494 6,436 14,930
Charged to profit or loss T A8z (#7:76(a)
(Note 6(a)) 3,272 - 3,272
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZT—/M4
+=-A=+—8H 11,766 6,436 18,202
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

118

b)

Deferred taxation (Continued)

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Laws of the
PRC (the “New EIT Laws”), a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from foreign investment enterprise established in the
PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax arrangement between the PRC and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable tax rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividend
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the
PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008 onwards. The Group recognised deferred tax
liabilities in respect of expected distributable earnings
from its subsidiaries established in the PRC since 1
January 2008 with reference to the Group’s dividend
policy, no matter whether any dividends have been
declared out of such earnings by the subsidiaries
at the reporting date. The directors of the Company
will review the funding requirements of the Group
from time to time and revise the dividend policy of its
subsidiaries as appropriate.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets arising from tax
losses amounting to approximately RMB60,683,000
(2013: RMB48,396,000) due to the unpredictability
of the future profit streams. All tax losses in the
PRC will be gradually expired within five years to
2020 (2013: 2019). The remaining tax losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

27. &8
(#8)

b)

MBERARAZAFR

EERE (&)

RIBFRBEBEAEEA (11
ERBHOERD - EPBEKZH
SNERERINEREEREIR
MR B ZRBZZ10%TAH © 1t
REB-ZZ/N\F—H—BE
B BRAR_ZTLF+Z
A=1t—HAENAF - fHhE
BN B E P RDAE R AT
BRBLH - HARBRERE
BRIEHY - RAKEME -
BRARER10% - Bt - A&
= 78 B i B RS2 O B I 8 )
RZZFZENF-A-BURE
& B 3 TR B AR B TR
W B T N\F—H—
B PR 2 P B R S H F B X A
WIEMADERNME @ A&
BIRBEBRBER - BRIELT
HMIREE  EWHEQRRNE
TERABCBRFRMNKEE
MRS - RAREFH TR
MAKENESER  RNEE
5 1& UL Y BB 28 R AR BBUR ©

ARRAERR A 2R EAL
BEIMSHEVTE -

RZE—WF+ZA=1+—
B - R R R FE R E TR
i AEETREROARE
60,683,000 (=& — =4 :
A R #48,396,0007T) H) i 15
EBEELENECHREBEE - FT
BREFBIMNBHBEEKRZ
ToTF(ZF—=F: =%
—NF) IRAFRZELSEIE -
BRSSP R HA A HE o
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28. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

29.

As at 1 January
Additions

Released to profit or loss

As at 31 December

n—H—H
NE
BARBZE

R+—_A=+—H

The deferred government grants are the subsidies received
from the PRC government for acquisition of property, plant

and equipment.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised and issued share capital

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:

As at 1 January and
31 December

Issued and fully paid:
As at 1 January

Issue of new ordinary shares (Note)

As at 31 December

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

28. & §E R FT#6 Bh

The Group
AEE

—E—HlE
RMB’000
AR®BTT

2014 2013
—T—=F
RMB’000

ARBET T

5,367 -
(658) -

4,709 =

A SE BT 4 B 2R B AR B BT 3 KB
YE - BE RRERRE

20. &
EE MBI
2014 2013
—E-mE —I—=fF
Number of Number of
0. 1T EER shares Amount shares Amount
BiHEA &F B £8
’000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
T i T S
BRE
R=A—-Ak
+-A=t-H 4,000,000 400,000 4,000,000 400,000
CETREE:
®=A—H 800,000 80,000 800,000 80,000
Btk (b 40,000 4,000 = -
®+=A=+-R 840,000 84,000 800,000 80,000
(Equivalent to (Equivalent to
approximately approximately
RMBT78,073,000) RMB74,872,000)
(&R (R
AE® ARE
78,073,0007% ) 74,872,0007C)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Note:

On 8 July 2014, Praise Fortune Limited, the Company’s
immediate and ultimate controlling party, entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent for placing a maximum of
60,000,000 ordinary shares (the “Placing Shares”) of the
Company at a placing price of HK$1.63 per share. On the same
date, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with
Praise Fortune Limited for issue of a maximum of 60,000,000 new
ordinary shares at HK$1.63 per share.

On 22 July 2014, 40,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
were placed by Praise Fortune Limited to certain independent
third parties at a subscription price of HK$1.63 per share. On
the same date, the Company issued 40,000,000 new ordinary
shares to Praise Fortune Limited at an issue price of HK$1.63 per
share. The Company raised approximately RMB50,816,000 (net
of directly attributable expenses of approximately RMB1,361,000),
which was used for future development of WWCB business and
as general working capital of the Group.
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29. Bx& (48)

EERBEITERA (B)

EBEFEAGRURDITBEIRL
BREXLBEENARAIANE LIAF
—EZRE - 2 ERRE AR AR

BREEMSBRF °

Hiat -

R-ZZE—WNFLANH ' ARQFA
B R &K H T Praise Fortune
LimitedE2 — & A2 & X 12 5t 1% &2
EEERBEMNISETREERS
60,000,000/% A& A A & i i ([A
ERM]) AT EEHZE - FE - &
DA IR TR D1.638 LB ITR
%60,000,000% #T & 18 [i% #iPraise
Fortune Limitedz] 32 R W% ©

RZZE—MFELA=-1+=H ' Praise
Fortune Limitedfl& THBZE =7
ERBESBRKRM1.638 TS
40,000,000 &R A 7] E @B K - A
B ANARNETEFRRMN.63
7 T [AlPraise Fortune LimitedZ£1T
40,000,0000% %1 & Bk - XA &
£ 54 AR ¥50,816,0007T (1 k&
EEEMRAIHARE1,361,000
TL) B RYER KB IR ZE 55 KO R 2K
BRRERBAEE —REEES -
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RESERVES

As at 1 January 2013 R=E—=%-F-H
Loss for the year FRER

Other comprehensive loss Et2AEE

- Exchange difference on tranglation - #EHHR
of financial statements to ERHERES
presentation currency LERER

Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZEBRER

Equity-settled share-based RAEERH
transactions AR5
As at 31 December 2013 and RZE—=%
1 January 2014 TZA=+-BEk
—Z-ME-A-H
Loss for the year ENEE
Other comprehensive income A2 Ak

- Exchange difference on translation - &8 K&K

of financial statements to ERHIEREL
presentation currency LERER
Total comprehensive income for ENZENGRE
the year
Transfer to accumulated losses upon  REERIEL Mk #RZE
lapse of share options ZitEiE
Issue of new ordinary shares BOHLER
Transaction costs aftributable to B/ mREL
issue of new ordinary shares RHHA
As at 31 Decernber 2014 RZZ-MEF
t-A=1-H

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-T-MF+-A=+—HLFE

30. f#fE
The Company
F47
Attributable to owners of the Company
ENGE LPN
Share
Share Share Contributed  Translation option  Accumulated

capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
12 EBRER #ARR EREE HRERE RHER a8
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARBTT  ARETR

(Note 29) (Note (i) (Note (iv)) (Note (vi) (Note (vi))

(BsE29) (g (HizEdv) (WisEe))  (oskwiD)
74,872 419,229 372,178 (111,922) 16,367 (32,073) 738,651
- - - - - (12,599) (12,593)
- - - (22,895) - - (22,89%)
- - - (22,895) - (12,593) (35,488)
- - - - 3,137 - 3,137
74,872 419,229 372,178 (134,817) 19,504 (44,666) 706,300
= = = = = (10,333) (10,333)
- - - 11,037 - - 11,637
- - - 11,037 - (10,333) 1,204
_ - = - (1,912) 1,912 =
3,201 48,976 - - - - 52,177
- (1,361) - - - - (1,361)
78,073 466,844 372,178 (123,280) 17,5692 (63,087) 758,320
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BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

30. RESERVES (Continued)

122

Share premium and reserves

i)

iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is
distributable to the owners of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for
the acquisition of these subsidiaries at the time of
group reorganisation immediately prior to the listing
of the Company’s shares on 1 December 2007.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess capital
contribution from the non-controlling interest of &2
7228, a subsidiary of the Company.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the net assets value of
subsidiaries acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to the group reorganisation.

Enterprise expansion reserve and statutory surplus
reserve

Statutory surplus reserve and enterprise expansion
reserve are set up by the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC by way of appropriation
from the profit for the year in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. These
subsidiaries are required to allocate certain percent
of its net profit for the year as reported in their PRC
statutory accounts to the statutory surplus reserve
and enterprise expansion reserve until such reserves
reach 50% of registered capital. These reserves
are non-distributable. The statutory surplus reserve
can be used to make up prior year losses of these
subsidiaries, if any, and can be applied in conversion
into capital by means of capitalisation issues. The
enterprise expansion reserve is used for expanding
the capital base of these subsidiaries by means of
capitalisation issue.
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

Share premium and reserves (Continued)
vi)  Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of the entities within the
Group whose functional currency is other than RMB.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(t).

vii)  Share option reserve

The share option reserve arose upon on the grant of
share options of the Company and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 2(p)(ii).

Distributable reserves of the Company

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium and contributed surplus are
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of share premium and contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its share capital account.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB785,935,000 (2013: RMB746,741,000),
computed in accordance with the Companies Law (Revised)
of the Cayman islands and the Company’s articles of
association. This includes the Company’s share premium of
approximately RMB466,844,000 (2013: RMB419,229,000)
and contributed surplus of approximately RMB372,178,000
(2013: RMB372,178,000), less accumulated losses of
approximately RMB53,087,000 (2013: RMB44,666,000),
which are available for distribution.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

30. f#fm (&)
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RARBZAEEER 2B
WREEZMBINEEZRE - K
R EAR R MY F2(0) P & & 5
REEIE A

vij) FEIRIERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on 1 December 2007. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant options
to the following eligible participants:

i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time,
including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
the Group holds an equity interest;

ii) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

iy  any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;

vi)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

vii) any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

viii) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to
the development and growth of the Group.
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue on the day on which trading of the shares
commenced on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(“General Scheme Limit”"). The total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
is 80,000,000 (including those granted but yet to be
exercised), representing 9.5% of the issued shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 10%).

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
participant is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue during the 12-month period
before the date of grant without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Any grant of options under the
Share Option Scheme to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
must be approved by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, any grant of options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates in
excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million within any 12-month period must be approved by
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

Unless otherwise determined by the directors of the
Company and stated in the offer of the grant of options to
a grantee, there is one year vesting period required under
the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

31.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE
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HE

31.

126

—THEFE+_A=t+—HIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. MR (H])
An offer for the grant of options to a grantee shall be MERAELNREEREZLN A
accepted by no later than 21 days from the date of offer. TEREX B HE2IBNER - £
HK$1 per grant of options is payable on the acceptance MER 2 BERERERTHBRE
of the grant of options. Options may be exercised in XAETT o BIRE R RRIERAE ST
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme B 2 ERATE - WARE AR #E AT &)
and expiring in accordance with the terms of the Share 2GR B E T W T A F
Option Scheme or upon the expiry of the tenth anniversary K (ARFEERAE) -
of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is the earlier.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the TEEBRARAIESEEET MAD
Company, and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the BIER)R D ZEL B BB R P E AW
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the BRAMARR KD ZWHE (i)
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange on the ZERNEREBPIAEE XA
date of the offer of grant; (i) the average closing price of R EBRERMHAARRRRSD
the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations Z W TE - R(i)A 2 A D E
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days B (UEaERE) -
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.
a) The terms and conditions of the share options a) ETEENEEBREZIER
granted to directors and employees are as follows: RAGHAT -
Number of
share
options Contractual
granted Vesting life of options
= conditions {02
BikiEs e BEEH SHEH
Granted to directors: KT ES 2 BIRRE
—on 14 May 2008 ——_ZTENF 5,800,000 one year 10 years
A A+TEA —4 +5
—on 11 June 2012 ——EFT——%F 5,000,000 one year 10 years
~A+—H —4 T4
Granted to employees: KT RE 2B
- on 14 May 2008 ——ZTFN\F 12,000,000 one year 10 years
HA+IMA i T4
—on 11 June 2012 ——ET——%F 30,000,000 one year 10 years
~A+—H —F T4
Total number of share
options granted el g 52,800,000
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

a)

The terms and conditions of the share options
granted to directors and employees are as follows:
(Continued)

On 14 May 2008, 17,800,000 share options were
granted for HK$1 consideration per offer to directors,
senior management and employees of the Group
under the Company’s Share Option Scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of HK$0.1 each of the Company.
These share options vested on 14 May 2009, and
are exercisable until 13 May 2018. The exercise price
is HK$2.81 per share. As at 31 December 2014, the
outstanding share options granted and accepted
by directors and employees was 13,800,000 (2013:
15,800,000).

On 11 June 2012, 39,000,000 share options were
granted to directors, senior management and
employees of the Group under the Company’s Share
Option Scheme at a consideration of HK$1 for
each offer of which 35,000,000 share options were
accepted in July 2012. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of
HK$0.1 each of the Company. These share options
vested on 11 June 2013, and will be exercisable
until 10 June 2022. The exercise price is HK$0.83
per share. As at 31 December 2014, the outstanding
share options granted and accepted by directors and
employees was 32,500,000 (2013: 35,000,000).

4,500,000 options lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil).

No share options were exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

31. MRARHERE (W)
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. MRS (48)

b) The number and weighted average exercise price of b) EEEUAREEREBSCEMN
share options granted and accepted by directors and ZIBARRE 2 8RB RN
employees are as follows: RENT

2014 2013
—2-mF —T-=f
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price Number of price Number of
MiEFY  share options MEFH  share options
fTfEE HRERE 1fEE RRERR
Outstanding at the beginning FOmARTE
of the year HK$1.46i T 50,800,000 HK$1.4678 T 50,800,000
Lapsed during the year FREK HK$1.71# T (4,500,000 = =
Granted during the year FRER - - - -
Outstanding at the end FREARTE
of the year HK$1.42i 7T 46,300,000 HK$1.4678 T 50,800,000
Exercisable at the end FRA TR
of the year HK$1.42i 7T 46,300,000 HK$1.46/8 T 50,800,000
The options outstanding as at 31 December 2014 RZZE—NE+=ZA=+—8
had an exercise price of HK$2.81 or HK$0.83 (2013: MATERERECTEESR
HK$2.81 or HK$0.83) and had a weighted average 2.81%8 7L 3%0.83% T (= F —
remaining contractual life of 6.207 years (2013: 7.175 =4 : 2.81/%7L3k0.83%7T) -
years). MmMEFHFBENFER B

6,207F (ZE— =% :7.175

S
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an
input into this model.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

31. MRARHERE (W)

c)

BREZAFERRBR

AR BRI mES 2 IR% 2
RFEREEBREZ AFE
FTE - BRBEREZGF AT
BERI—EA]| BEEEEN
AE - BREZANFHAL
B2 —HBASH -

Share options granted on

Bz Bk
11 June 2012 14 May 2008

Fair value of share options and  BBE#EZ A FE —E—_5F —EENF

assumptions BBk ~NA+—H AA+ITA
Fair value at measurement date Ret=E B8z AFE HK$0.25:85T | HK$0.881/5 T

toE
HK$0.27#& T

Share price M (B HK$0.83&TT | HK$2.79% 7T
Exercise price 1718 HK$0.83&TT | HK$2.81%ETT
Expected volatility (expressed as FEHR IR (LA [ =3B

weighted average volatility HETERAR

used in the modeling under FRA®INEF KR

the Binomial Option Pricing Model)  &/x) 54% 40%
Option life (expressed as weighted — BEAXESHER (LA

average life used in the modeling [—1E= | HiETEE

under the Binomial Option R AERAR 10 years 10 years

Pricing Model) IEFHFIRERR) +& T4
Expected dividends TEHARR B 4.82% 3%
Risk-free interest rate mERAE (RE

(based on Exchange Fund Notes) IMNEERE S ZE) 1.13% 3.21%

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

There were one year vesting period associated with
the share options granted.

Ta HAR R TO AR AR I SRR R At
(LA B i 2 hn 4 ~F 15 R 4 57
HHE) BERIIMADN
BRI ARRKIE 2 B S
B FAHREDNREBERE
BE - IRAEIBRHAZSHR
RZBEBRH RN FEZEFE
RERTE

ERHZBBRIENRS —FRB
HARR -

129



Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited ¢ jZ R R{REBHR A T

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-NFE+_A=1+—HLFE

32. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions and all those
divisions are located in the PRC. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to
the Group’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following four
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

a)

130

Sales of EP products and equipment: this segment
involves the sales of EP products and equipment to
external customers.

Manufacture of EP construction materials: this
segment involves the manufactures and sales of EP
construction materials to external customers, and
the main product is WWCB.

EP construction engineering projects: this segment
undertakes the EP construction engineering projects
for external customers.

Provision of EP related professional services: this
segment provides the EP related professional
services to external customers and for group
companies.

Segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s CODM monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following basis:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of tax recoverable,
investments in financial assets and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include trade and
other payables, deposits received and receipts in
advance attributable to individual segments and
bank borrowings managed directly by the respective
segment.
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32. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a)

Segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities (Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated and services rendered by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments. Inter-segment assistance provided by one
segment to another is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA” that is, “adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income
and “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’
emoluments, auditors’ remuneration and other head
office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s CODM
is provided with segment information concerning
revenue, depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses and additions to non-current segment assets
used by the segments in their operations. Inter-
segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

32. FEWE (W|)

a)

DEWA - HEFHEGE - BE
k&afE (8

DH

Wik kX H T2 EZF DB
EEZHERMEH 2R -
ARPTEEZ X B ZE D &
BlEcEERTERBHEL L
XHEDETZEDEL o 2 EBE
RHZIFAFEER -

AREFROBEFIOFEAR
[ FEEBITDA] » BN [4E A%
ZARFAE - BIE - TERE
SHATH YRR - R [FE] 8
FEIREWA - [ I8 R ]
BIEFEMEEE 2 RMIEEE
BEZE [ FHEEBITDA] » &
BB THE W ARIETEBR
ERl D& 218 B {EL E—
B IEEH M R A A 2 B
& R HE MBI R T 1T
$ o

Br U B B B #8 3 BEBITDAZ
DEERIN  AREBZEHRE
BREANERBEEESA - I
E BHEKRAEBBULRIER
BN EERBZDEBER -

DEEHE T2 ELET
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32. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities (Continued)

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers

\nter—segmenl fevenue

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment
profit/(loss)
(adjusted EBITDA)

Depreciation and
amortisation for the year

Impairment loss on frade

receivables
Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current

segment assets during
the year

RESEERPZ
T2EA A
DHRRA

QE=v: LN

2555
&/ (558)
(% ZERITDA)

ERfEREH

BRESHHE

HEEE

IERANEE

ERAE
FRBNHAE

32. FEWE (W|)

a) AW BAREE > BE
kR&E (&)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable BEZT—ONFR=ZT—=
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for the +-—A=+—BIEFE BHE
purposes of resources allocation and assessment R B R 5 37w m AR
of segment performance for the years ended 31 SEEREERRAREZ
December 2014 and 2013 is set out below: REE T 2| H EBE R 5 A

™
Sales of EP products Provision of EP related
and equipment Manufacture of EP construction professional services
RRERR EP construction materials  engineering projects REBRF Total
RiECHE RERRREHH BRERIE HRSRRE ait

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z8-mF | CT--F | I$-WE | T-=F | ZB-WE | CT=F | Z8-BF | CT-=F | I3-WE | =
RMB’000 RMB'000 | RMB’000 RMB'000 | RMB’000 RMB'000 | RMB'000 RMB'000 | RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR | ARETL | ARRTR | ARETR | ABRTR | ARETT | ARRFR | ARETR | ARRTR | ARETT
478,564 541,888 102,666 2,986 1,620 39,101 4,297 4,005 587,147 587,980
- - 428 - - - - 1,360 428 1,360
478,564 541,888 103,094 2,986 1,620 39,101 4,297 5,365 587,575 589,340
78,688 70,263 53,927 (3,909) 137 (7.424) 954 932 133,706 59,862
1,677 6,969 26,203 12,594 296 294 - - 28,176 19,857
19,321 1370 - - 4623 - - S| 3om 1370
459,860 292,941 766,805 422875 54,906 153,107 5,443 5927 | 1,287,014 874,850
36,433 1,944 203,739 67,098 - - - - 240,172 69,042
371,790 185,115 29,139 19,319 7,731 75,929 16,992 11,245 489,652 291,608

Reportable seqment liabiities T2 RABEE
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BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

32. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 32. HEWEE (W)

A2HDIWA ~ BFIHE
B -EEREEZHIR

b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, b)

profit or loss, assets and liabilities

2014 2013
—Z=—ms$ —E—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBETIT
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue A 2P FUWA 587,575 589,340
Elimination of intra-group HEEERRS
transactions (428) (1,360)
Consolidated turnover e EER 587,147 587,980
Profit aF
Reportable segment profit derived JREINEBEFHY
from external customers A] 235 50m A 133,706 59,862
Other revenue and other net H b U A K B Ath 5
gain Wezs 4,205 4,733
Depreciation and amortisation & N 5 (30,114) (21,522)
Finance costs BB P AR (1,004) (976)
Unallocated head office and APOERAET R DERS
corporate expenses (60,451) (60,123)
Consolidated profit/(loss) BRE AR AER(E1E)
before taxation 46,342 (18,026)
Assets &
Reportable segment assets AERHHAEE 1,287,014 874,850
Available-for-sale financial asset At ESREE 9,000 9,000
Tax recoverable ] Y [B1 55 18 20,001 -
Unallocated head office and AOBEBRIT N TCEEE
corporate assets 485,943 642,079
Consolidated total assets REREE 1,801,958 1,525,929
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AIZHRyHaE 489,652 291,608
Tax payable FERIHR IR 10,888 3,389
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBAE R 18,202 14,930
Unallocated head office and AOBEETRPEARE
corporate liabilities 43,199 50,105
Consolidated total liabilities REBAR 561,941 360,032
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32. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
c) Information about major customers

There were no customers with whom sales amounted
to 10% or more of the Group’s turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Included in the Group’s
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
revenue of approximately RMB74,456,000 (2014:
Nil) arising from sales of EP products and equipment
to the Group’s largest customer. No other external
customers contributed 10% or more of the Group’s
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013.

d) Geographical information
(i)  Revenue from external customers

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of the Group’s
revenue from external customers. The
geographical location of customers is based
on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods were delivered.

Mainland China (place of domicile) e lEiiy N7
South Korea L
Others HAth

134

32. FEWE (W|)

(FEMM )

c)

d)

FREREEFRZRH

REBEE-ZT—NF+=-A=+
—HIEFE  BEZFHNEE
I ARE B EEE10%IIA L -
BE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—
BIEFE AEEEEERE
FRERASBERARFHER
RE fn R 2 WA AR
74,456,000 (=& — PO 4 :
m)-BHE_ZT—=F+=H
=+—HIEFE  BEEMIN
BEFERMAEEZX5E10%
AL o

3 5 ¥
@)  KEINBEFZRA

TR BEBEAZEK
BANER R P 2 WA R AT
ER 2 ER - BEM
EiEZEHRRERE
m B0 -

2014 2013
ZB-lmE | —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRET | ARBTT

584,525 585,317
1,863 2,663
759 =
587,147 587,980
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32. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

d) Geographical information (Continued)

(i)

Specified non-current assets

The Group’s specified non-current assets
comprise property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments, and prepayments
for consultation, marketing and promotional
services.

The geographical location of these specified
non-current assets is based on (i) the physical
location of the assets, in the case of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments, and (i) the location of the services
to be provided by the service providers, in
the case of prepayments for consultation,
marketing and promotional services.

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of the specified
non-current assets.

Mainland China (place of domicile)

Hong Kong BB

REIRRE (FEMH)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

32. FEWE (W|)

d HMERH (#)

(#)

IEEH B EE

AEEZETHRDE
EBEDE - BE MR
B ENEERR R
- S HEENE ER
S AN/

RZEREFRDEEN
P £ 3 [ T3 AR 4R ()L 4
X BEERRBREM
HMEXEMS  BEEN
BEFRPTE - R (i3 o&
- S HEERE ER
BRNRME KRR
HE K RHE RS
o

TR#IEBIETER
BEENFELE &
B

—=-m%

AR®TR

2014 2013
—T—=F
RMB’000

ARBETT

RMB’000

420,339
537

634,579
450

635,029 420,876
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33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

136

a)

0

A bank deposit of a subsidiary of approximately
RMB6,543,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB10,000,000) was pledged to a bank to secure
a banking facility of approximately RMB4,213,000
(2013: RMB7,758,000) granted to this subsidiary.

The Group’s building with carrying amount of
approximately RMB724,000 (2013: RMB763,000)
as at 31 December 2014 was pledged to a bank to
secure a bank loan of approximately RMB9,000,000
(2013: RMB9,000,000) granted to a subsidiary.

A bank deposit of a subsidiary of approximately
RMB616,000 (2014: Nil) as at 31 December 2013
was pledged to a bank as security in accordance
with a sale contract entered into between this
subsidiary and a customer.

33. REEH

a)

RZE—WF+=—A=1+—
B —RHRBARZRITER
# A R %6,543,0007T (= &
— =% A R ¥10,000,000
JT) BB LMEAZINE A
AERZIEBTRENARK
4,213,0007C (ZE—=%F : A
R#¥7,758,0007T) 2R o

RZE—WF+=_A=+—
B AEEEREEOAEARKE
724,000 (ZZE—=F : A
R #763,000t) 2 EFE K
BT IRITUNER BEHARE
9,000,0007T (ZF—=%F : A
K #9,000,0007T) 2 & F—FH
B AR ZIRITERZER -

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—
B> —HEBARZRITER
# AN R #616,000C (= T —
e - &) BB TRITIER
—HEHEZBARE—ZR
FEEHEAS N2 -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. EREAEEZS
a) During the years ended 31 December 2014 and a) BE_Z-NFER-_FT—=F
2013, in addition to the transactions and balances TZA=T—BLFE KR
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, It < B 75 Sk L b R 40 P FR
the Group also entered into the following material R REFI REBTT
related party transactions: BEI NI ERBRAEATR
5
The Group
x5
Relationship with Nature of
Name of related party  related party transaction 2014 2013
FREALER HEREALZRE XHkE —2-@mF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Wuxi Xin Wei High A company of which Receipt of
Temperature Ceramics  Mr. Jiang Quanlong, rental income
Co., Ltd. a director of the Company, — WEEEHA
EHTREREE is also a director of its
BB AT holding company
ARAIEEBRERE
TAEZRARIZESE AR 53 53
Yixing Silver Mile A company of which Purchase of
HERX Mr. Jiang Quanlong, leasehold land
adirector of the Company, ~BEHREMELH
is also a director of its
shareholder
AARESRRERSE
NAERRZEZZ A - (14,434)

RZE-—WHE+_A=+—
H - % AR #09000,0007T 2
BITERTAESCERTEH
M ETER - BEEEEAAK
N R B # Rk & 15E ) 77 Praise
Fortune LimitedE A —fI &4
EnEBA TENZL AR
BRECEE -

As at 31 December 2014, a bank loan of approximately
RMB9,000,000 is guaranteed by Mr. Jiang Xin and
Ms. Li Jingru. Mr. Jiang Xin is one of the ultimate
beneficiaries of Praise Fortune Limited, the immediate
and ultimate controlling party of the Company, and
Ms. Li Jingru is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Xin.

RZE—NWEFF+ZHA=1+—
B - 4 AR#¥14,000,0007T 2
RITERTIARE T2 ER
ZEERKABBE L LEE
1R o

As at 31 December 2014, bank loans of approximately
RMB14,000,000 are guaranteed by Ms. Jiang Lixia,
the legal representative of SEEDRI.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. BREALXS ()

b) Remuneration for key management personnel of b) AKEEFEETEAEBZH M
the Group representing the amounts paid to the (BNt H8FT IR EE 2 T AR A
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 is as EE2eF) H3WT
follows:

2014 2013
—Z—mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TR ARETFT
Short-term employee benefits HEHES R 1,982 2,087
Post-employment benefits BB A8 A 14 28
Equity-settled share-based % 2 45 E R 9 1~ 7R
payments - 479
1,996 2,544
35. COMMITMENTS 35. #&iE
(a) Capital commitments (@) EAEIE
The Group The Company
E 3L /N

2014 2013 2014 2013

—T-mE | —T-=F | ZF-EF | T =F
RMB’000 | RMB'000 | RMB’000 |  RMB'000
ARBTR | ARETT | ARWTRE | ARBTI

Capital expenditure EBETIIREZE
contracted but not ETHERR B B RE
provided for in the fEH BB EAFAY :
financial statements:
- in respect of the —-EEME -
acquisition of EUET
property, plant and
equipment 2,349 33,004 - -
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35. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

The Group as lessee

At the end of each reporting period, the Group and
the Company had operating lease commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of office
premises, factory premises and equipment which fall
due as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

35. #*iE (&)

(b)

REREARE

FREMEREREA
REBEHR - AREEAR
AMMAEYE  TROER
RERETABEEEHEM
ANREXN&ERERELZ
REEEAERRBERDT -

The Group The Company
&M 3/

2014 2013 2014 2013

—Z-mE | —T-=F | ZB-WmE | T =F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR | ARETT | ARBTRE | ARKTZR

Within one year —FRN 934 2,025 447 1,329
After one year but within —FRERFRA

five years 320 447 - 447

1,254 2,472 447 1,776

Leases and rentals are negotiated and fixed for
periods of three years. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

The Group as lessor

The Group had contracted with the tenants for the
following non-cancellable future minimum lease
payments receivable:

—&FR
—FRIERFA

Within one year
After one year but within five years

HORHEE D RBEREE
RE=F - -HEEEREAA
HE -

FREMERHEA

AEED EBEFRIA T A
4 B WOR R R & 15 RET 3L
a#

The Group
*EH
2014 2013
—ZE—mE —_F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
53 53
124 177
177 230

139



Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited ¢ jZ R R{REBHR A T

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE

35.

36.

140

—THEFE+_A=t+—HIFE

COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

Included in the above is future minimum lease
payments receivable from Wuxi Xin Wei High
Temperature Ceramics Co., Ltd. a related company,
of approximately RMB177,000 (2013: RMB230,000)
and the non-cancellable future minimum lease
payments receivables is as follows:

Within one year —F R
After one year but within five years —&F&BRER

The related company is a company of which Mr.
Jiang Quanlong, a director of the Company, is also a
director of its holding company.

The Company
The Company had no operating lease commitments
as a lessor as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has provided product warranties to its
customers in respect of construction work completed
and certain of its EP products sold for a warranty period
ranging from 6 months to 2 years after project completion
or product delivery. At the same time, the Group has also
received warranties in respect of those construction work
and equipment supplied from its sub-contractors and
suppliers. The directors of the Company believe that the
amount of crystallised warranty liabilities will not have a
material adverse effect on the overall financial position or
results of operations of the Group.

35. #*iE (&)
(b) KEHEAE (H)

M EHEAEBRIEOAR
MWMWEPT— F
A R #230,00070) 2 — @ E
HERARESTE S REEER
DA RREEFAERERFTIE R
7S] $BEH R 2R B K & R MR

BT
The Group
AEE

2014 2013
—e-mE | T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR ARBTT
53 53
124 177
177 230

BERRR—BARRESEE
REXRENMA/EZEBRARIZE
AN

£
F4 7
R-2—MER-—B—=F+
—A=+—A  AAFEAY
HAABBEERERE -

36. HARAR

AEERERTIRETREREER
ZEAETRAREGRAERTFIRHEER
& REHARIREREBIESR
REGFAERERMETE A
B AEENEEHEARE KEE
BATIEMH o BETRELREZR
ERS - ARRESHEREAR
ZEBRSEBE TS H A EBEEREY
AR EEEBEERBERTHE

28 o
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 37. BXER
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital REBEEREARA,HEZBENRE
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as REBE R MEBIRBIFELEEE
a going concern, and to generate sufficient profit to g DA E A R SR DA MR
maintain growth and provide a satisfactory return to its & RARERIUNE 2 B® -
shareholders.
The management actively and regularly reviews and EEERR N EHREERNEBET
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance B REE - NERSRRE®RE
between the higher shareholder returns that might MTEAgEHE s RE B EKFHEE
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the fid 2 BEARRREER 2 17 e RARE 2
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital FIERAS T - I35 18 ¥ AR SRR 3 AR
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure BETHEENRERERNEREE
through the amount of dividend payment to shareholders A - TR BEXRZZFEER
or raise new debt financing. No changes were made in the BURIEREMEE) o
objectives or policies during the year.
The management monitors the Group’s capital structure on EEEBREELRFEEERYE
the basis of a net debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, RAEEZEREE - Bt %
the Group defines net debt as total debt (which includes ERATEHFRRESAE (15
interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other BEREEE  EBNESREMNK
payables, and deposits received and receipts in advance H R B WiEe R TEW KN IE R 5T %
plus unaccrued proposed dividends minus cash and bank DIRR BB S RIRITER) ©
balances).
The net debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2014 and RZE—WMER-_T—=F+=A
2013 was as follows: =t+— B EEEEFERAT :
The Group The Company
*5H 347
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-QNE | —T-=F| ZB-WMFE| —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | ARETT | AR®TR | ARETR
Current liabilities: MEALE
Short-term bank loans RERITER 14,000 14,000 - -
Trade and other payables [ENE 5 REMFIE 176,795 175,985 21,097 63,451
Deposits received and B iz S RIBHGR
receipts in advance 337,347 151,728 - -
Total debt BWE G 528,142 341,713 21,097 63,451
Less: Cash and bank balances  Jii : & MiR1T4 % (379,236) (571,326) (558) (3,671)
Net debt BETSA 148,906 (229,613) 20,539 59,780
Total equity Ay G| 1,240,017 1,165,897 758,320 706,300
Net debt-to-equity ratio U PESE 12.01% N/A i 2.711% 8.46%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

KR B SAT o] EL P B A R BEE RO
MERZERRERS o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

142

a)

b)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Retention receivables

Amount due from a related company
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Pledged bank deposits

Cash and bank balances

Loans and receivables

Available-for-sale financial asset

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost

Trade and other payables

Short-term bank loans

StHRE

EWE 5708

Hit el
RRERKR

el —RBEE A RHHIR
i Ch=YNTE e
EEARTER

R RFITER

B R R RR

fHEEREE

LRSuFHENERAR

RNE S REMKR
EHRITER

Financial risk management objective and policies

Exposure to credit, interest rate, liquidity and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. These risks are limited by the
Group’s financial management policies and practices

described below.

There has been no change to the types of the
Group’s exposure in respect of financial instruments
or the manner in which it manages and measures the

risks.

38. &M IR
a) SMIASE
The Group The Company
F5E /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZS-ME | _T=F |ZB-HlF | =%
RMB’000 | RMB'000 | RMB’000 | RMB'000
ARRTR | ARETT | ARBTRT | ARETT
131,425 124,166 - =
44,994 54,315 78 79
51,826 61,915 - -
16 820 - -
- - 250,708 246,631
6,543 10,616 - -
379,236 571,326 558 3,671
614,040 823,158 251,344 250,381
9,000 9,000 - -
176,795 175,985 21,097 63,451
14,000 14,000 - -
190,795 189,985 21,097 63,451

b) TREREEEEREE

AEEERERBTREARZGEE

FIE -

nBETLEERR AR

BEBT XM ERRRERE
REEZEAR -

AEBEHSRITAREEE T
BT A AERRL EED) -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b) Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

i)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position
after deducting any impairment allowance.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables, amounts due from
related parties, and other receivables which
are disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining
sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a
means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are normally due within 60 days from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

38. &M TR ()

b) LREABREEEEREX (B

FERRE

MoE-—mE+=A=
+— B SANREAE
B U
KFESMEEZEE
18 (40 1 15 4 18 8
#) -

AEBZEERREIE
KERHEMBHREHE
BN REZEREES
IR EREET KA
K E o EURIE - B IR
BRETHREZEER
R URHBEEERER

SRk -

EERREHFIEH
BHEEMREABAR
SEXXPBRINEA
R REBDHRERAR
FEERHHAF IR R
ERzrERm (WAEH
E) ZBE - RIEERD
EEZ M EERRR -

oL W E B IA N F
ARBHER—EELR
NEEEZMERFE
PEITE BTG - FFfE
TERBEPZELR
Lk KR ZENEE
h XEBREEFEFZ
ERERREMERE
R BRRESHRIEAB
HEHEFRE0R A E
Hle E—HRBERT &
SETEaEPERK
Hm e
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

144

b) Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

i)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer.
Taking into account the creditworthiness of the
Group’s customers, the credit risk measures
and the historical levels of the bad debts,
the directors of the Company consider that
such concentration of credit risk would result
in significant credit default exposure to the
Group. At the end of the reporting period,
3.31% (2013: 2.11%) and 15.42% (20183:
20.96%) of trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively, arose from the sales of
EP products and equipment segment.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables are set out in Note 19.

Amounts due from related parties are regularly
monitored by the Group and follow up actions
are taken to recover these balances in the case
of any risk of default.

The Company’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries
and other receivables. The Company reviews
the recoverable amounts of individual debts
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation and high credit ratings.

The credit risk associated with an advance to
a local government authority is low because
the counterparty is PRC local government.
The carrying amount of the amount advanced
to the local government authority amounted
to approximately RMB17,230,000 (2013:
RMB17,230,000) (see note 19(e)).
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

(Continued)

i)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

38. &M TR ()

Financial risk management objective and policies b) 2REREEBEEZERIEK (#)
Interest rate risk i) FI=RER
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk and AEEZBeRERNE
fair value interest rate risks relate primarily to [2, B K2 A (B ) & b
variable-rates and fixed rates, respectively, of FEHFIEBEBEIT
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and TR IRITA &R R A HY
short-term bank loans. The Group’s normal RITERZFEF E K
policy is not to use any derivative contracts B EMEFM - —MK&M
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. T AEBZBETER
However, the management of the Company RAEMTEGHNHEFE
will consider hedging significant interest =R B o M E
rate exposure should the need arises. The AR EEERKEERE
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by HmERM KRR - &
management is set out in (i) below. SEREEEEZHNHN
ERR IR T (i) ©
i) Interest rate profile ) FIEEE
The following table details the interest rate TRFMLASER
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the BERRBERRD
end of the reporting period. FI LS ©
The Group
350
2014 2013
—2-mF —E-=%
Effective Effective
interest rate inteigst rate
ERfE RMB’000 BRFIX RMB'000
% AR®%TRE %  ARETL
Fixed rate borrowing B EER
Bank loan-unsecured ROTER - BER N/ATER - 5.6% 5,000
Variable rate borrowing [ E)FI R
Bank loan-unsecured RITER - EHA 5.0% -
‘ 6.0% 5,000 - -
Bank loan-secured RITER - FEA 6.0% - 6.00% -
7.8% 9,000 7.80% 9,000
Total borrowings BfER 14,000 14,000
Fixed rate borrowings BT A= E R
as a percentage of el
total borrowings BAL N/ARER 36%

The Company has no significant interest rate
risk at the end of each reporting period.

ARBREREHRIL
BEEEEEANXER o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

146

b) Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and
increase/decrease the Group’s retained
profits by approximately RMB2,788,000
(2013: decrease/increase the Group’s
loss after tax and increase/decrease the
Group’s retained profits by approximately
RMB4,294,000). Other components
of equity would not be affected by the
changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date.
The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the end of
the next reporting period. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for year
2013.

The Group’s fair value interest rate
risk relates primarily to fixed rate bank
borrowings. The directors of the Company
consider the fair value interest rate risk is
insignificant to the Group as most of them
are short-term.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

(Continued)

i)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

38. &M TR ()

Financial risk management objective and policies by SEEKRSEEERBE ()
Liquidity risk i) REBESEE
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will mEBETRRIEARS
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations ERETBBENE SR
associated with financial liabilities that are ARSI EMESREE
settled by delivering cash or another financial HEIH s oRAER
asset as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to 7% 5 38 B [ 2 1 = B o
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity REEZHERTHE
requirements and its compliance with lending RERNBHZRBE
covenants and to ensure that it maintains ECERRHEBETERE
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate BZER WEBERASE
committed lines of funding from banks to meet HRARBASHEEBER
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer BEERRITERBIRHER
term. WED - LA HEHE
ERRAZREBEST
The following table details the remaining TRABFIAREERAK
contractual maturities at the end of the RAIZETESCRERE
reporting period of the Group’s and the RMEBMR 2B TE L
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, HAMR o tETh B R G &I FT
which are based on contractual undiscounted EARIRIA SR (BER
cash flows (including interest payments BEHFE (FWHZE
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, Al A RN SR
based on rates current at the end of the HIEIRITHAIER) 5t E 258
reporting period) and the earliest date the N3 RAEERARF]
Group and the Company can be required to AN R xR AH
pay. E -
2014 2013
ZE-mE —5-=F
Contractual undiscounted Contractual undiscounted
cash flow cash flow
AHRERERALR ANREARRALR
Within 1 Within 1
year or year or
Carrying  on demand Carrying  on demand
amount  —EME Total amount M Total
REE L #E E by &g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBTR ABRTT ARWTR | \RETn ARETT ARETI
The Group 550
Short-term bank loans BBRER
subject to a repayment (FAREREREN)
on demand clause 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000
Trade and other payables R B REMTE 172,142 172,142 172,142 171,170 171,170 171,170
186,142 186,142 186,142 185,170 185,170 185,170
The Company YN
QOther payables HiENE 21,007 21,007 21,007 63,451 63,451 63,451
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

148

b) Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

i)

At 31 December 2014
At 31 December 2013

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements.
The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result,
these amounts are greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “within 1 year or on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. Taking
into account of the Group’s financial position,
the directors of the Company do not consider
it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The directors of the Company believe that
these bank loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements.

The Group

The Group held cash and bank balances amounting to
approximately RMB379,236,000 as at 31 December
2014 (2013: RMB571,326,000), and the directors
of the Company consider that it is adequate for the
Group to manage its liquidity requirements in the
coming next twelve months from 31 December 2014.

38. &I A ()
b) LEEREEREREE (&)

i)

RBEZRERE (&)

TRBAK A R ERE
BIGRR 2 RITERRIE
ERmEE 2 HEE
FIERKIEL ZZI B 2
- BRATEBEENAE
WA EFEZHEN
e Bt ZFEHED
R EREEE DA [ —
F sk B ke | R E
A BEze® - BEE
REEZ BB - A
NRAEBEER/BRITAK
AR TR ERAEE
RZBWIEHE - ADRIE
ERE ZRFRITER
1 & AR 4% & 5K 1 =% AT EX
ZATBIER B BERE -

%M

Maturity analysis - Bank
loans subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on

scheduled repayments
HA AR - REREEGRZR
THEHR RHEERAH)

*—_2—mFE+=-RA=+—H

Total

undiscounted

cash

Within 1 year outflows
KRB

R—FR BeRE#E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBET T
15,002 15,002
14,820 14,820

RZE—=F+=-A=+—H

AEBR -_Z—NF+ A
=t+—BFEBEZ2RE RIET
& gk 4 A R 379,236,000
T(ZE—-—=%F: AR K
571,326,0007T) ° NAAIES
REAERS T —NF+—
A=+—HiEstxK+ @A
AENEERERBESET K o



Annual Report 2014 ¢ == — [JF F 3§

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 R AR B

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b) Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

iv)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases that
are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure if necessary.

i)

Exposure to currency risk

The Company’s exposure to currency
risk is insignificant as the Company did
not have material financial instruments
that were denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency in
which they measured as at 31 December
2014 and 2013.

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of each reporting
period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of exposure are
shown in RMB, translated using the spot
rate at the end of the reporting period.

Cash and bank balances

Overall exposure B RE R b

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

38. @M T A (i)
b) LMEABREEERRKIE (M)

iv)

B ER

REED KRz E%E R
TE2RBEEBARBES
RN EBIAIN 2 EE
AEZEERSBERZ
BB o A& E B A E
SNEE SRR o AT
B E g R = INE R
B XREFTEREE
EmERIMNER B

) HEEFEEE

ZE0AY /NI 3P
—E-mEE-F
—=F+=Z/A=+
—HETEZ2EE
AN 2 BB ETE
ZERNHEEIA
WANR G ZE
BRI NEK o

TRANAEER
BEHREMREGZ
ERER - BRERA
e AN EREE
BREZNETE I
Sz E¥FEZE
REERAEM
EE-BEHRAN
msE ZFEARE
BIOAARER
R AR E HIR
ZBVEAR RGBT o

B& RIRTTHEER

The Group
*5KH

2014 2013
—E—QlE —E—=F
USD’000 USD’000
FET FET
3,649 3,640
3,649 3,640
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

150

b) Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

iv) Currency risk (Continued)

ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
approximate change in the Group’s
profit/(loss) after tax for the year and
retained profits and other components
of equity in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period.

38. &M TR ()
b) TREREEEERBE ()

iv) E¥Ek (&)
i) BEREST

TRETNHREH
RAEE 2 F R
Bigm (& 18)
Ko R B8t ) B #E e
H b ARy A& E
[EE DNl
RGBT
2R EE

2014
23-mE
Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign
exchange Effect on Effect on
rates profit retained
SMEE  aftertax profits
m/  HRG# Hig
(W) @BHcKE RHZvE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERTT  ARRTR
The Group  F&H
usD eI 1% 2 2
(1%) (27) (21)

2013
5=k

Increase/

(decrease)

Effect on in foreign
other exchange Effect on
components rates oss
of equity NEER affer tax
HiEaxn g/ HRpE
Boeke (Rd) BEz7E
RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR ARETT

Effect on
other
components
profits of equity
URE  HERLL
B e BauvE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTRT  ARBTR

Effect on
retained

Wiz

- 1% @

1
2=
>
=
= o
SRS
I

The Company has no significant currency
risk at the end of each reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rate had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the Group’s exposure to
currency risk for financial instruments in
existence at that date. The stated changes
represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchanges rates over the period until
the end of the next reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis
for year 2013.

In the management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year-end exposure does not affect the
exposure during the year.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c)

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of the
following financial instruments.

i) Liquid or/and short-term assets and liabilities

For financial assets and financial liabilities
that are liquid or having a short-term maturity,
it is assumed that the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values. The assumption
is applied to trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank loans and bank balances
without a specific maturity.

39. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES
UNCERTAINTY

a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 2, the directors of
the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumption are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if revision affects both current and
future period.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE
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39. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

152

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

i)

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments

Management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values for the Group s
property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments in accordance with the Group’ s
accounting policies stated in note 2(e) and
note 2(f) respectively. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge and the amortisation expense
where useful lives and residual values are different
from previous estimates, or will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
an item of the property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and
an impairment loss may be recognised in profit
or loss in accordance with the accounting policy
for impairment of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments as described in
note 2(g)(ii). The carrying amounts of assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount.
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39. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

ii)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments (Continued)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and the value in use.
In determining the value in use, expected future
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of the level of revenue and amount
of operation costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying
value of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in
future periods. As at 31 December 2014, the
carrying amount of the Group’s prepaid lease
payments, and property, plant and equipment
are approximately RMB54,534,000 (2013:
RMB55,729,000) and RMB451,690,000 (2013:
RMB366,325,000), respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE
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39. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

154

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iii)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. These estimates are based on the current
market conditions and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of
similar nature. Management will reassess the
estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The carrying amount of the Group’s inventories
as at 31 December 2014 is approximately
RMB244,270,000 (2013: RMB97,365,000).

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables. This estimate is based on the
credit history of its customers and the current
market conditions. Management reassesses
the provision at the end of each reporting
period. The carrying amount of the Group’s
loans and receivables (included in trade and
other receivables) as at 31 December 2014
is approximately RMB228,261,000 (2013:
RMB241,216,000).
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39. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

v)

vi)

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 2(i) and
(2)(s)(ii), revenue and profit recognition on an
incompleted project is dependent on estimating
the total outcome of the construction contract,
as well as the work done to date. Based on
the Group’s recent experience and the nature
of the construction activities undertaken by the
Group, the Group makes estimates of the point
at which it considers the work is sufficiently
advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result,
until this point is reached the amounts due
from customers for contract work as disclosed
in note 26 will not include profit or loss which
the Group may eventually realise from the work
done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in
terms of total cost or revenue may be higher
or lower than that estimated at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years
as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

Warranty provisions

As explained in note 36, the Group does not
make provision for product warranties it gives
on sales of its EP products and provision of EP
construction engineering projects, taking into
account the Group’s recent claim experience
as the Group has also received warranties
in respect of those construction work and
equipment supplied from its sub-contractors
and suppliers. It is not indicative of future
claims that it will receive in respect of past
sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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39. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

156

b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In determining the carrying amounts of certain assets
and liabilities, the Group makes assumptions for the
effects of uncertain future events on those assets
and liabilities at the end of each reporting period.
These estimates involve assumptions about such
items as cash flows and discount rates used. The
Group’s estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and expectations of future
events and are reviewed periodically. In addition
to assumptions and estimations of future events,
judgements are also made during the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

i) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income tax in Hong
Kong and various taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for taxation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional tax
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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39. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

b)  Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies (Continued)

i) Withholding tax on the distributable profits of
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries

On 16 March 2007, National People’s Congress
approved the New EIT Laws which was
effective from 1 January 2008. According to
the relevant regulations of the New EIT Laws,
when a foreign investment enterprise distributes
dividends out of the profits earned from 1
January 2008 onwards to its foreign investors,
they are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax. The applicable income tax rate varies with
the origin of the overseas investors.

The Group has made provision for withholding
tax on dividends expected to be remitted from
the subsidiaries established in the PRC, based
on the Group’s general dividend policy for the
profits generated by these subsidiaries after 1
January 2008. The Group provided withholding
tax for such undistributed profits as deferred
tax liabilities. The directors of the Company will
regularly review the dividend distribution policy
of these subsidiaries from time to time.

40. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Praise
Fortune Limited, which was incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

40.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_T-NFE+_A=+—HILFE

39. FREEE & FIER K f& &1 T BA BA

EREZRE ()

b) ERFRKEZEFBEEFE

2 EEHE (])

W) ARE]HERE 2 AR
] 3Kz 7 7R H1#%

R-BZELF=ZA+RK
B 2BEARREKRKE
BBTHEEMGR
A ARZFERNF—
A—BRER- RiEH
TEMBHEAZBER
EREBEAZINER
BERERARIREED
KB -_ZEZTNF—A—
BREES 2 FIERK
B BEBRPEEE
PriE® - WREINE
BEMRE 2 TR RE
RRRZFABHRE -

AEBERBEBAS
ErERBARBE T
ENF-H-BREXL
B3 A 2 — AR AR B BRR
IEHAREFPEKL
ZBRBES 2B
AHEREHBEE - KK
B 3t 48 B K 0 K A ET
REMBEEG (EAE
EHRBEAE  AARE
EREEHMBMAREN
JB 1 A I AT 2 S
DIRBUR °

HERSREWNS

RRABEZERB ANEBEHE
MR EH T AR EBREZES
& it i 32 2 A FlPraise Fortune
Limited - Z ERE W EFERATHAR

SRz ABERE -

157



Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited * ;2 THIR{REB AR A T

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_ZT-—NF+_A=1+—RHIEFE

41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective

. B
+
%

HHERBE_S—NF

—R=Z+—HLEEERX

BZHMATREETETEM
BREENZTRCE

BENSMBHRRTIZERS - FE
= u-l—Em/_\AE,ﬁEﬁEyIEEAﬁi— =
—OEF+-A=T—HLEFEHRK

for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include

the following which may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations*

Disclosure Initiative*

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation*

Agriculture: Bearer Plants*

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle*
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41.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

41.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_ZT-NE+_A=1+—HILtFEE

EEMGERBE_S—NF
+T-RAR=+—HLEEFEERX
ERCHITREETEEM
BREENZTREE (8])

! R-Z-—MFELA—Bk2&FR
Z B AR

2 R-Z-—MFELA—Bk2&FR
ZEEHBAER - BREREI

8 R-E—RE—A—B®Z&MR%A
ZENEEEBHBRE LRGN
R AR

¢ R-E—RE—A—B®Z&MR%A
Z B AR

s R-ZE—tF—A—BkZ&M%A
Z B AR

© R-ZE—\F—A—BkZ&M%A
Z B AR

AR B EERTEZEHAT REIER]
BB W5 e R B IR E R ERE
BHELEZFE EEBAIAL
AR B)RBRTRAZFH AT RAHER]
BEWBREENTKRAELHEZS
BB BRENERTE

159



Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited ¢ jZ R R{REBHR A T

Financial Summary

MBRE

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and the ~ TR AAEERA R EAMKEE 268 %
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five BREEEEHBERE -
financial years.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REEE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+_A=1+—HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
ZEMmE | —T—=F —FT-——F —T——F —T-IF
RMB’000 | RMB' 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARETT ARETT AR®TT ARETET

Turnover BER 587,147 587,980 410,838 476,026 646,708
Profit/(loss) before taxation ~ BB ATHEF /(EiE) 46,342 (18,026) (27,266) 19,986 110,654
Income tax expenses P (22,939) (3,371) (5,984) (11,162) (35,999)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHMN/(E7) 23,403 (21,397) (33,250) 8,824 74,655
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CogEHAR
As at 31 December
B+=B=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“®-NE | —F-=F B —F—F —T-FTF

RMB’000 | RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Total non-current assets FRBEELE 644,029 429,876 360,912 301,690 189,307
Total current assets MEEERE 1,157,929 | 1,096,053 1,243,248 1,214,246 1,253,725
Total assets BEME 1,801,958 | 1,525,929 1,604,160 1,515,936 1,443,032
Total liabilities BERTE (561,941) | (360,032)  (418,889)  (301,462)  (237,207)
Net assets BEFE 1,240,017 | 1,165,897 1,185271 1,214,474 1,205,825
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